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Corporate Information
2AFEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors as now constituted is listed below:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Xiao Zhixin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Jia Jun
Mr. Tam Sze Kin

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Tam Sze Kin

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Mr. Wang Jia Jun

NOMINATION AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man
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REGISTERED OFFICE
Third Floor
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P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suite 1801, 18/F, Tower 1
The Gateway, Harbour City
25 Canton Road, Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Third Floor

Century Yard, Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman

KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre,

16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Yangchun Dongmen sub-branch, PRC
China Construction Bank Corporation
Meizhou Wuhua Station branch, PRC
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Wuchun City sub-branch, PRC
Bank of Communications Co., Limited

Hong Kong Branch

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

31/F, Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
401

WEBSITE

www.wanjia-gp.com
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year

ended 31 March 2023.

After three years of zero-COVID-19 policy implemented in the
“PRC") since 2020, the PRC

government finally announced in December 2022, a nation

People’s Republic of China (the

wide loosening of its hardline COVID-19 restrictions that had
hammered the world’s second biggest economy. Furthermore,
World Health Organization chief has declared end of COVID-19
as the public health emergency of international concern since 5
May 2023. However, as the PRC’'s economy is still recovering from
the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group made various adjustments
business strategy during the year such as streamlined the
business operations in the PRC market to control operating
costs, implemented an effective cash flow management strategy,
and assessed the business expansion plan with a more prudent

approach.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
The Group continued to focus on pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business, and provides hemodialysis treatment and

consultancy service business in the PRC.

The COVID-19 pandemic restrictions in 2022 in the PRC has made
it challenging for everyone but the Group’s business remains
robust and resilient and we are proud to see total revenue of
the Group for the year was approximately HK$173.702 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$18.879 million as
compared to 2022. The gross profit was approximately HK$56.936
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$2.702
million as compared to 2022. The profit for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company was approximately HK$1.820
million as a result of the continuing improvement on the Group’s
operation of the hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service

business segment in the PRC.
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Management’s Statement
EEERTS

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group will centralise its resources in developing the
hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service business. The
Group will look to further develop its hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business through organic growth and

acquisitions.

Looking forward, the Group will focus on developing such
segment through establishment of new self-operated hemodialysis
treatment centres and provide hemodialysis consultancy service
to hospitals in the PRC so as to expand its operating scale and

further penetrate in the market.

The Group believes that the demand for hemodialysis treatment
services in the PRC market is still far from being met and has
great potential for development. Based on the Group’s experience
and strength in the medical field, we will continue to further
explore and expand our existing businesses to further penetrate
the hemodialysis sector, and it will become the driving force for
building our Group's influence in the market and create better

return to the shareholders.

The Group will continue to pay attention to different investment
opportunities, identify appropriate businesses and projects for

shareholders, and increase shareholders returns.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the management team and staff for their tireless
dedication that helps fuel the Group’s healthy development. In
addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders, business
partners and customers for their continuous support. In 2023, the
Company will continue to work tirelessly to create long-term value

returns for the shareholders.

Wang Jia Jun
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENmRI

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2023 is as follows:

8

Total revenue was approximately HK$173.702 million (2022:
approximately HK$154.823 million), representing an increase
of approximately 12.19% over 2022.

Gross profit was approximately HK$56.936 million (2022:
approximately HK$54.234 million), representing an increase
of approximately 4.98% over 2022.

Profit from operations was approximately HK$4.473 million
(2022: loss from operations was approximately HK$47.383

million).

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$1.820 million (2022: loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$50.999 million).

The basic and diluted earnings per share was approximately
HK$0.32 cents (2022: basic and diluted loss per share was
approximately HK$9.10 cents).

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$9.876 million as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
approximately HK$5.768 million).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holdings company and the Group
is engaged in the business on pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business, and hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
service business in the PRC.

The COVID-19 pandemic restrictions in 2022 in the PRC has made
it challenging for everyone but the Group’s business remains
robust and resilient and we are proud to see total revenue of
the Group for the year was approximately HK$173.702 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$18.879 million as
compared to 2022. The gross profit was approximately HK$56.936
million, representing an increase of approximately HK$2.702
million as compared to 2022. The profit for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company was approximately HK$1.820
million as a result of the continuing improvement on the Group’s
operation of the hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business segment in the PRC.

Total revenue contributed by the hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy service business for the year ended 31 March
2023 was approximately HK$121.424 million, representing an
increase of 17.16% as compared to 2022. All employees of the
Group spared no effort to actively implement and complete all
development goals under the leadership of the Board and the
management team, we are proud to see a significant growth rate
in this business segment during the year.

Total revenue generated from pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business for the year ended 31 March 2023 was
approximately HK$52.278 million, representing a slight increase of
approximately 2.14% as compared to 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENmRI

Segment information
During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally

generated from: (1) pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution

business and (2) hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service

business in the PRC. Financial information in respect of these

operations is presented in Note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements.

1)

2)

10

Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business
The Group has a large and broad customer base through
our distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. The
Group distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers
located principally in the Fujian Province. Our customers
can be categorized into three types namely hospitals
and healthcare institutions and end customers such as
companies operating pharmaceutical retail chain stores,
independent pharmacies, and outpatient departments of
community hospitals, healthcare service stations and clinics.
In the early part of 2019, the medical reform policy further
controlled the pharmaceutical costs in public hospitals
in Fujian Province which reduced the overall size of the
pharmaceutical distribution business in public hospitals. In
addition, the distribution policy broke the original rules that
essential medicines in public hospitals in Fujian Province were
only distributed by 10 wholesale companies, thereby causing
material adverse impact in the operation and its overall
performance of the Group in pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business.

Revenue from this segment was approximately HK$52.278
million (2022: approximately HK$51.183 million),
representing a slight increase of approximately 2.14%. Loss
from this business segment was approximately HK$1.130
million (2022: Gain from this business segment was
approximately HK$0.007 million).

Hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business

In respect of the hemodialysis treatment business, the
Group currently operates several self-operated hemodialysis
treatment centres spread across the Guangdong Province,
PRC.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 16 November 2022, The Group has terminated the 10
Years Service Contract with Zhuhai Shengchuang Medical
Investment Management Limited” (the “Owner”) (EkiBFt
BIBREREEEAMRAT) (an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) in respect of the operation and
management of the hemodialysis centre in the Hospital,
namely Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital* (the “Hospital”) (3%i&
NAEEEERT) . The service contract was signed on 13 March
2020. The reason for the originally termination was due
to a legal proceedings instituted by a creditor against
the Hospital and the bank account of the Hospital was
frozen. Such bank account was used to receiving patients’
government subsidies under the medical insurance policy.
The hemodialysis centre was unable to receive the said
patients’ government subsidies since the bank accounts
have been frozen. The Directors took the view that it is in
the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole to terminate the service contract. As of 15 January
2023, the Hospital has fulfilled all obligations including
the refund of RMB11 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$11.88 million) of financial assistance to the Owner under
the termination agreement. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 16 November 2022 for further details.

On 31 March 2023, one of the Group's self-operated
hemodialysis treatment centres in Huidong, Guangdong,
the PRC, namely Huidong Centre was disposed at RMB3.5
million (equivalent to approximately HK$3.99 million). As
of 11 May 2023, the disposal was completed. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 31 March 2023 for
further details.

Revenue from this segment was approximately HK$121.424
million (2022: approximately HK$103.640 million),
representing an increase of approximately 17.16%. Gain
from this business segment was approximately HK$15.450
million (2022: Loss from this business segment was
approximately HK$38.014 million).

* English translations of official Chinese names are for
identification purpose only.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENmRI

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s revenue from
the operating segment had increased considerably. For the year
ended 31 March 2023, revenue was approximately HK$173.702
million (2022: approximately HK$154.823 million), accounting
for an increase of approximately 12.19% as compared to 2022.
The increase of revenue was generated from the hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy services business in the PRC.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including the government subsidies
received from the 2023 Employment Support Scheme in Hong
Kong, sundry income and bank interest income amounted to
approximately HK$0.153 million (2022: approximately HK$0.05
million) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2023, selling and distribution
expenses amounted to approximately HK$34.798 million (2022:
approximately HK$29.600 million), representing an increase of
approximately 17.56% as compared to 2022. The increase in
the selling and distribution expenses was due to the increase of
marketing expenses, transportation and logistics costs.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2023
amounted to approximately HK$24.584 million (2022:
approximately HK$22.250 million). The increase was mainly due to
the increase of staff training expense and staff costs.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the finance costs of the
Group were approximately HK$2.018 million (2022: approximately
HK$1.308 million), representing an increase of approximately
54.28% as compared to 2022, due to the interest payment of
borrowings.

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

The Group has recorded profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$1.820 million for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (2022: loss for the year attributable to

owners of the Company was approximately HK$50.999 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The profit was mainly attributable to among others, the following

reasons:

(@) the Group has recorded a reversal of allowance for expected
credit losses on trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$7.499 million due to a lesser amount for the net
allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other

receivables required for the year ended 31 March 2023; and

(b)  benefited from the continuing improvement on the Group’s
operation of the hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
service business segment in the PRC, there is no impairment
loss on goodwill (the “Impairment”) required for the year
ended 31 March 2023 as compared to the Impairment of
approximately HK$46.630 million recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Overall financial position

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$9.876 million as at 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately
HK$5.768 million). The increase was due to the borrowings and
the improvement on the trade receivables settlement. The Group
recorded total current assets of approximately HK$76.869 million
as at 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$81.453 million)
and total current liabilities of approximately HK$38.074 million
as at 31 March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$45.468 million).
The current ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the current
assets by the current liabilities, was approximately 2.02 as at 31
March 2023 (2022: approximately 1.79).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio which was
calculated based on outstanding debts (comprising borrowings,
amount due to a director and lease liabilities) less cash and cash
equivalents over total equity (including all capital and reserves
attributable to owners of the Company) was approximately 0.13
(2022: approximately 0.15).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENmRI

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2023, no member of the Group was engaged
in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the
Group.

Capital commitment
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no material capital
commitment (2022: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2023, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$28.011 million (2022:
approximately HK$28.011 million) representing 560,222,136
ordinary shares (2022: 560,222,136 ordinary shares).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The following is the key risk and uncertainty
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

14 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Market risks

PRC government policy

The Group is very concerned about external regulatory
compliance and environmental changes, and a management
team is responsible for timely collection, interpretation and
promotion of external regulatory requirements. The Group's
management, together with the business line, will also discuss
changes in the external environment, assess the impact of
regulatory requirements on the existing business, and develop
targeted countermeasures. The Group's compliance team will
provide professional advice on the latest regulatory requirements
and conduct compliance reviews on the compliance of existing
regulations.

Foreign exchange and goodwill impairment risks

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the Directors consider that the
Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be manageable.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the
year.

Impairment test for goodwill is based on the forecast of future
cash flow and contains the management’s relevant assumptions
and professional judgements. Goodwill is exposed to certain risks

of impairment.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains the level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flow. The management
manages liquidity risk by monitoring the utilisation of borrowings,
adequacy of reserves and banking facilities by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENmRI

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 202 (2022: 184) full time

employees (including Directors) as shown in the following table:

& & B 3 Al B R
RIZEZ=F=ZR=+—8 > &x&EEKEHF202
B (ZEZZEF 184%) 2HES (BFEE
) FBEHENTR:

Number of staff

Location ith 24 BETA™
Hong Kong 5% 10
Mainland China AR g 3t 192

For the year ended 31 March 2023, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$20.221 million
(2022: approximately HK$19.247 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include share-
based payment, the contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, discretionary bonus and medical coverage in Hong Kong;
and basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work
injury insurance and unemployment insurance to the employees in
the PRC.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any charges on the

Group's assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
During the year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during

the year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT WANIJIA GROUP

In 2013, Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (“Wanjia” or the
“Company”; or together with its subsidiaries as the “Group”
or “we") was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). It is an investment
holding company that primarily operates in the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, as well as the hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy business in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”). We uphold the operation philosophy of
“Integrity is the foundation, Morality comes first” and adhere to

the operation objective of “Benefit the society and community”.

Operation
Philosophy
EEES

Integrity is the foundation,
Morality comes first.

MIERA BEBE

Our Business

In terms of hemodialysis treatment and consultancy business,
the Group is one of the market leaders in providing hemodialysis
services. We are committed to transforming care delivery to
improve the quality of life of our patients and strive to become the

largest provider of kidney care services in the PRC.

In terms of pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business,
we have a large and broad customer base under our distribution
network in the PRC. The Group sells pharmaceutical products
to customers primarily located in Fujian Province. Our customers
can be divided into three categories, which are hospitals and
healthcare institutions and end customers, such as companies
operating pharmaceutical retail chain stores, independent
pharmacies, outpatient departments of community hospitals,

healthcare service stations and clinics.

Operation

Objective

By
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Benefit the society

and community.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIF-HHERERERS

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECT
In the Report to the 20th CPC National Congress, General

Secretary Xi Jinping emphasized the priority development of
promoting the construction of a healthy China and safeguarding
people’s health. In 2023, the Group continued to follow the policy
guideline of “Benefit the society and community.” The Group will
centralize its resources on hemodialysis treatment and consulting
services. In the future, the Group will focus on establishing new
self-operated hemodialysis treatment centres and providing
hemodialysis consulting services to hospitals simultaneously. The
Group will continue to study the market potential of other cities

and regions in the PRC and strive to expand its business scale.

During the Reporting Period, the Group collaborated with a
sustainability consultant to identify environmental, social, and
governance risks. The goal was to refine the Group’s sustainability
governance policies and reporting disclosures. Important
sustainability issues were identified based on industry trends and
business developments, focusing on climate change, product and
service safety, and anti-corruption training. The Board of Directors
will discuss potential solutions for the identified risks to develop a

more comprehensive sustainable development strategy.

Finally, the Board would like to take this opportunity to thank
all shareholders, business partners and customers for their
continuous trust and support to the Group, as well as every
employee’s contribution. The Group will continue to be committed
to integrating the ESG concept with its business development,
strive to create opportunities and look forward to sharing the

harvest with all stakeholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the eighth Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report (the “"Report”), which aims to provide stakeholders
with a better understanding of the Group's progress in terms
of corporate social responsibility and sustainability issues by
presenting the Group's policies, measures, and performance

related to environmental, social, and governance matters.

Reporting Period and Scope

Unless otherwise stated, the Report covers the Group’s
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and hemodialysis
treatment and consulting service businesses for the year ended
31 March 2023 (the “Reporting Period”). The Reporting Scope
is the same as last year’s report. The disclosure of environmental
key performance indicators (“KPIs”) focuses on the Group's
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and hemodialysis
treatment and consulting service businesses in the PRC, while the

disclosure of social KPIs covers the entire Group.

RIE-#HERELRS
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR-HERERERS

Reporting Principles

The Report discloses environmental and social KPIs in compliance
with the “Comply or Explain” provisions specified in Appendix 27
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the
“Guide”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the

“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange. The Group adheres to

wERA
FEBEXRBEZAGESF LR (TEHR
B S+ (RIB - EREAREIES)
(T$5511) PIRETIERE NREREERT
BRERMERBEVIER -TEBERTSE
BRERRFUTZEREFEA -

the following three reporting principles in the preparation of the

Report.

Materiality EE 1%

Quantitative 21b

The Group conducted an internal materiality assessment
to effectively identify the issues that are material to the
Group and stakeholders during the Reporting Period in
a more comprehensive manner.

REBERAFEET T ABEE ML > LM A KH A
HAEEEBREMEAXEMNEE-

The Report has disclosed KPIs in a quantitative
manner where appropriate. The KPIs are calculated
with reference to “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” and “Appendix 3: Reporting
Guidance on Social KPIs” of “How to Prepare an ESG
Report” published by the Stock Exchange.
FERITHER T  ABREUECHRIRBIRER T ER
REMISR - HRARARERIE RS2 T B PATT 389 (1
ARERRE - HEREARST)PIMERT | IRRMREA
HIERERIES I AR = - H ERARESISIRERS
Sl IETEE

Consistency —E %

The Report applies consistent statistical methodologies for meaning comparisons of ESG data over time. In case of

any changes in the reporting scope or methodologies, they are explained for stakeholders’ reference.
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Data Collection

The information and data cited by the Group are derived from
official documents of the Group and have been reviewed and
approved by the Group’s Board of Directors (the “Board”). The
Report was approved by the Board of the Group in July 2023.

Report Version and Access

The Report is an annual publication, which is available in both
traditional Chinese and English. The electronic version of the
Report can be downloaded from the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Group (https://www.wanjia-gp.com). In the
event of any conflict or inconsistency between the English and

Chinese versions, the English version shall prevail.

Feedback

The Group values the opinion of various stakeholders and
hopes to continuously improve our performance in sustainable
development. If you have any suggestions on the Report or the

sustainable development strategy of the Group, please feel free to

contact us.

Address: Suite 1801, 18/F, The Gateway, Harbour City,
25 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: info@wanjia-gp.com

Company website:  www.wanjia-gp.com
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIF-HHERERERS

SUSTAINABLE GOVERNANCE

Establishing a sound governance structure is crucial for ensuring
the sustainable development of the Group. The Board plays a
critical role in overseeing the Group's environmental, social,
and governance risk management, which involves evaluating,
prioritizing, and managing the material ESG issues and risks.
Additionally, the Board bears ultimate responsibility for managing
the Group’s significant risks. Meanwhile, the Board will set and
manage the ESG-related targets and review the progress and
completion of them. The Board also regularly reviews the relevant
ESG policies and measures, and effectiveness of sustainable
development. In addition, the Company has engaged Riskory
Consultancy Limited as sustainability consultant to provide ESG

and sustainability advisory services.

Effective risk management is also an important part of corporate
governance. The Board regularly reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. Employment contracts and Employee Handbook
also provide clear definitions of employee codes of conduct and
formulate corresponding measures for violations or unethical
behaviours. For details on corporate governance, please refer to

the Corporate Governance Report in this annual report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BUSINESS ETHICS

Maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance is
crucial for the Group to build its reputation and enhance its
competitiveness in the industry. Integrity plays a crucial role in
achieving this goal. The Group adopts a zero-tolerance approach
towards activities such as bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering. To ensure compliance, the Group has established a
clear governance structure that regularly reviews and monitors the

policies and practices of corporate management.

The Group strictly abides by all relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Anti-Unfair Competition Law
of the People’s Republic of China, Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial
Bribery, Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of
China, Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of

Hong Kong) and Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist

RIE-#HERELRS

[ZE JERE

MERSRENCEEHAEHRIEE
REAGTERZFNTHEEZ MHABEER
EERTEEEREENFR -S&EHHB
B BR BMFERARBEIPRNTATRE
E-AREER ~EEERIIBWHNERR
B BRI REREEEENBERER

FEEBRRETFRAERBEREZNR &R
FRE(PEAREMBERAEERFE)
(PEAREMBRZE) - (ERELEERS
BITRANETRE)  (REARAME R %S
N BBIERNF201E(P LR IFAD R EE
EHBCISETBAERRBHOFESEE
1B ) o

Financing Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

e Our staff are instructed not to accept any benefits from suppliers or other
partner companies under any circumstance; and

BETEAEABRTHATRZHEHIEMSEEUNERNZE &

e Employees are required to declare their relationship with any other personnel
of the Group and other partner companies prior to their employment and
shall abstain from such business activities that may cause conflict of interests.
ETHEABAERREEEREMSEEMUNTEAMEMASRHGZ LEETH
TR EREE BRMEER

Employee Code of Conduct
and Professional Code

BIARBRRETA
W

e Employees may report suspected violations and unethical conduct to their
supervisors, designated responsible personnel or senior management;
BTRHERERRAEETARME LA - IEEAEATSREEASER
2R

e Upon receipt of the report, designated responsible personnel will investigate
and provide solutions to all complaints and allegations contained in the report
and report the results of the investigation to the Review Committee; and
WEIBRE EEEEASHREANNMAERFRIGEEFHAT L IRHER
FHE RENEELZEGERFAEER ) &

e |f the management identifies a serious breach, consideration will be given to
referral to the judicial authorities to ensure that the Group operates with the
highest ethical and professional integrity.

HEEEHNABREERSEH MERXEEHRAERE  MBFRIAEENUR
ENERRERIRTEE-

Whistleblowing Policy
PWHEE
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IRIF-HHERERERS

During the Reporting Period, we provided anti-corruption training
to directors and staff to enhance their integrity awareness and
understanding of relevant legislation, and to stop corruption from

our internal business operations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any legal
cases regarding corrupt practices. The Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation
to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering that have a

significant impact on the Group.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The opinions of stakeholders serve as a solid foundation for the
long-term development and success of the Group. The Group
places a high value on stakeholder opinions, and consistently
seeks to improve communication channels to proactively gather

and understand their views and expectations.

We communicated with stakeholders through various channels, as

summarized below:

HEHE ZAZERLENATAREERE
TRMREFEN > UR A MBS B
REEBEEANT B RABEHFEERK
BEETER

HEHE rEBTEREIAABETHRAN
Z TANBEANREEREMER -
R BFFRARBNERKRER  UHAER
BEARENER-

FREsH

BHENERRRTEERESRKAKMINNE
EREER FAEESEERFHENER
TAREBSRAEBERE UTHRERT
RPN RRIE-

HARBEZEBFRALANRELFTHERR
HBEB2RTR:

Stakeholders Major Communication Channels Concerns
Fin& FEBRRE R HIA
Investor and e Annual general meetings e Corporate governance
Shareholder BEBEAD NEBE
BREERBRRE
O o e Annual and interim reports e Business compliance
[_\ f_] FERTHRE EBER
m e Press release and announcements e Return on investment
WERERAS K E O R

e Company website
GRS
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RIE-#HERELRS

Stakeholders Major Communication Channels Concerns

Fin& FEBRERE R HRIA

Customer e After-sales services e Quality and safety of products and services
-1a £ 1% RS ERRRENRERER

5
'3

Supplier and Business

Partner

HEBmREBSE

%

Employee

1=

=

d.o

I

Customer feedback forms, hotline and
emails

ERRERNE ABKER

Company website
NGRS

Site visits

BHER

Business conferences

ES A

Supplier assessments

gL

Trainings
123

Performance review and meetings

R K

Internal announcements and publications

RER Q& R TIY)

Suggestion box
BRE

Customer rights protection

EREDRE

Fair procurement process

AT R

Timely delivery of supplied goods/services

KBS AR & AR

Staff salary and benefits
BT HMREH

Health and safety of working environment

ITHRRENRERZE

Training and career development

BRI R Bl SR 8 P
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Stakeholders Major Communication Channels Concerns

BnE FEBBERE REEE

Government and e Routine reports e Compliance with laws and regulations
Regulatory Authority PIITRE BT ERRER

B R EHE

: e Working conferences
THEE=® e Sustainable development

AIEAER R
e Supervision on compliance with

local laws and regulations

BERABTAMEZRREZRNEE

Community e Community activities e Community involvement
HE HEED HESH

o e Charitable donations e Environmental protection awareness
Q\\;|;/7 BERIBR B R
/i e Social media

A LREE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To assess the materiality of ESG-related issues, the Group
enlisted the services of an independent sustainable development
consultant. Additionally, the Group conducts internal assessments
to evaluate the impact of these issues on stakeholders, with the
goal of identifying and addressing the expectations and concerns

of various stakeholders within the Group.

The procedures for the materiality assessment are as follow:

RIE-#HERELRS

EEMTE
RTIRZTHRRE - HERELAREETEE
Mt A EEEBRBINAFESERE
IR EEZ MRS - Lbsh > ZEBMETH
WA MEEZEHFNENRZEETE
B LR RBARERANSH HEAMENS
EREER

FREZMFENEFEE !

Issue Identification

|
rrffrrr
Review and Examination

(o] /& e 4R

2

Confirmation of

Material Topics

EEMEEEL

By referring to the new requirements of the Stock Exchange and the Guide, and
communicating with stakeholders, the material ESG issues of the Group were
sorted out.
BESEFBHMURE - HERERBREHESIRAFHEBEER BEY
HAERBRBEEMNRE HEREREE-

Combining the expectations of major stakeholders and the influence of different
sustainable development issues, we reviewed and re-assessed the material issues
identified in 2021/22.

HEIEFHENHERTRRRE - HERELAZEHAEENNZE > HM
H2021/22F8 E#BNEE MR EETEIRE KRB R

Based on a review of the various ESG issues, we agreed that material topics
in the Reporting Period have not changed significantly compared to those in
2021/22. During the Reporting Period, 8 issues being classified as material
topics. The material topics will be disclosed in this Report.

ERNHERBE HERELREZENLDE HAXREFENEEZLRE

2 5
2021/22F B M KRB EABETC AFERMEREEMNAZTELRR BL

VC|\'-|
L I A BB EABRSFEMKE-
During the Reporting Period, 8 issues have higher materiality and
highlighted in this report, including Wastewater Management,
Combatting Climate Change, Anti-Corruption, Customer
Satisfaction, Data Security and Customer Privacy Management,

Product Health and Safety, Product Quality Management,

Employee Communication.

REME SEREARSEEMUNARE
FEMFE OB KEE BHRMESE-
RES - BRREE -BEBELXERERTARE
B -EnERZE2 - EnE=EEREERE
o
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RIR-HERERERS

Environment Aspect

IRIZEME

Operational Practices Aspect

EERERER

Social Aspect
#tgRm

1. Air Emission Management

REEHMEE

2. Energy Management
BEREE

3. Environmental Compliance

RIEER

4. Expenses on Environmental
Protection

RIRRERX
5. Greenhouse Gases Management

BERBEE

6. Waste Management
EEEY &R

7. Wastewater Management

EEKEIR

8. Combating climate change

FEH RIREE

Note 1:The highlighted issues are identified as having higher material

during the Reporting Period.
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9. Anti-Competitive Behavior
Management
RFEBITRERE

10. Anti-Corruption
R&S

11.Company Profitability

AR EFIEE

12.Customer Satisfaction

ERREE

13.Data Security and Customer

Privacy Management

BEREREFRLER

14.Innovation and Intellectual
Property Rights
B 3 e N 8 2E 1

15.Product Health and Safety
ERERRZER

16.Product Quality Management
EmmEERE

17.Supplier Management
it e B IR

EEE

18. Anti-discrimination

R %48

19.Community Relations

HERIAR

20.Diversity and Equal Opportunity
ZRthTFEHXRE

21.Employee Communication

EE&E

22.0ccupational Safety and Health
BEZERER

23.Social and Economic Compliance
HEREESR

24.Talent Management

AT EE

25.Training and Development

13 R 3

26.Prevention of Child and Forced

Labour
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OPERATING PRACTICES

The pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business operated
by the Group places particular emphasis on drug safety and
effectiveness. As a responsible drug distributor, the Group
implements effective quality control measures throughout the
procurement, storage, sales, and transportation processes to
ensure the quality of medicine. The Group is dedicated to
offering professional services that prioritize the convenience
of our customers. The Group’s pharmaceutical wholesales
and distribution business is in strict compliance with laws and

regulations stipulated by the State Food and Drug Administration.

Relevant Laws and Regulations

HRZERRIER

RIE-#HERELRS

EEEMN
FEBEENERBBERIFHES > AItts
NEREGHNZEZMERBERE-FAEEE
WEYLEBS ZATEEXRBE -#E-H
ERERBREPERANNREZEFEEK
BREYMERAERBEEZRB UL ERE
FE-AEENENERMBERDHEET RN
BTEXEmEnGEEERBRTHNER
AR e

e Medicinal Product Administration Law of the People’s Republic of China;

(PEARHANMBERZEER);

e Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China;
(REAREMBEESE);

e Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests;

(PEARHENBSEERDREL)

e Patent Law of the People's Republic of China;
(PEAREMBEZERNE);

e Regulation on the Administration of Medical Institutions;

(BEREEE R ;

e Measures for the Administration of Medical Quality;

(BROEEEIE);

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and

BREDFASE(BAERR (AR 1561) 5 K

e Trade Description Ordinance (Cap. 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

FRZAIE32E (A mHRBIEH)
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To facilitate employees’ effective execution of their responsibilities
in accordance with relevant requirements set out in laws and
regulations, the Group has established an effective quality
management system, which plays a key role in protecting our
customers’ personal information from unauthorized access, as well

as ensuring the quality of our after-sale services.

The nature of the Group's business does not involve intellectual
property rights. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
in relation to health and safety, advertising and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress

that have a significant impact on the Group.

Supplier Management

The Group views its suppliers as partners and strives to establish
mutual trust and win-win cooperation with them. The Group is
committed to fulfilling its mission of providing pharmaceutical
products to the community and distributing medicine to
healthcare institutions. Given that the Group primarily operates
in the pharmaceutical wholesale business, it places a greater

emphasis on the stability of its supply chain.

Patients need to take a specified number of drugs according to
the treatment, and the stability of the supply chain will directly
affect the quality of the patient’s treatment. In order to ensure
the stability of supply chain, the Group has established a long—
term relationship with a variety of large and medium-sized
pharmaceutical suppliers from various provinces across the nation
as means to diversify our supply chain and maintain stability of
supply. During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged a total
of 67 medicines and consumables suppliers which all located in
the PRC. During the Reporting Period, we have assessed 58 of our

suppliers.
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Prior to inclusion as a supplier for the Group, a strict and thorough
investigation of the potential supplier is performed to evaluate
their suitability. Approved suppliers are reassessed annually to
ensure compliance with Group’s requirements. In addition to price
and quality of goods, the Group also has specific requirements
regarding the environmental policies of its suppliers. We require
the suppliers to comply with the applicable environmental laws
and regulations of the country in which they are located, and the
Quality Management Department will conduct supervision and
verification. All suppliers were assessed in accordance with the

same set of procedures.

The Group maintains contact with its suppliers through various
channels to learn about their needs and to identify opportunities
for collaboration with each other. For example, the Group holds
a supplier appreciation meeting every year to provide a platform
for exchange of opinion and potential business plans. We will
also continue to monitor the quality of our suppliers’ medicines
to ensure the quality and safety of medicines through the
implementation of a quality control system. To further ensure the
quality and safety of the products we sell, suppliers have provided
quality assurance agreements to products. Whenever a supplier
delivery their products, the Quality Management Department must
carry out acceptance for each shipment to avoid sending non-
conforming drugs to customers. We also regularly follow up with
suppliers on product quality feedback and opinions, continuously
improve and jointly formulate solutions to achieve a win-win

situation.

RIE-#HERELRS
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TREFHFERLESRKREBESGHHKE F
NMAEESEFETREMUBBIHT > LURH
FERMBRABABEGFAR -BR &K
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Product and Service Quality

To establish and implement quality objectives, as well as monitor
each department's performance, the Group has established a
Quality Management Department. This department is responsible
for ensuring consistent quality throughout the supply chain.
The Quality Management Department manages product quality

according to the following procedures:

~v )

W and analysis of the results

-]

\
o

S

EmkRHmE

RTRIEBEFRGEER LEESHAN
B AEERUTmEEER ZHHER
EREEHEENEEHREN— REERE
BEEUTEFEEEmME

Visit each department regularly to carry out internal review, risk assessment,

EHEIA AR EBFIETAMEZ  ARTERERDF

Propose suggestions for improvement and enhancement

RENEREBIERSR

S~

<>

TS

Maintaining proper storage conditions for medications is crucial

review and follow-up

LSRR TFEEE R REE

to preserve their quality and efficacy. The Group’s storage and
transportation facilities are designed in accordance with national
regulations, with monitoring systems in place to closely track
temperature and humidity levels and prevent any negative impact
on the medicines due to changes in the surrounding environment.
Additionally, the Group has implemented a medicines recycling
management system to facilitate systematic recycling when
necessary. In case any recalls, the Food and Drug Administration
must be notified by the management. During the Reporting
Period, no sold or shipped products of the Group were recalled for

safety and health reasons.
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We understand the concerns and needs of patients, and we care
for them from both service and emotional aspects. The Group
will regularly check and evaluate patients’ health indicators and
propose treatment plans. The Group not only cares about the
patients’ health condition, but also the patients’ emotions. For
example, the Group will provide transportation for patients who
live in remote areas for treatment, and even offer help and gifts to

patients with difficulty to express our care.

After-sales Service and Complaint Management

The Group places great importance on customer feedback and
prioritizes their interests. The Group is dedicated to continually
improving the quality of its services and has established a system
to manage customer complaints. To gauge customer satisfaction
with its products and services, customer service representatives
from the Group regularly contact customers. In addition, we
have a collection box to collect customers’ opinion in order
to more effectively to understand customers’ expectations. All
customer feedback and complaints are handled by the customer
service department, and records in detail for future reference. For
complaints involving major incidents, an investigation team will be

set up by the Group to follow up and review potential issues.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received no complaints

related to products and services.

RIE-#HERELRS

HPBPERANEEREFE  HATERS
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We sincerely thank our patients for
placing their trust in us.
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Customer Privacy Protection

During operations, the Group's employees are often required to
access customers’ and patients’ information. However, employees
are not allowed to disclose customers’ and patients’ information
to anyone under any circumstance. Access rights of computer
system have been set to prevent unauthorized personnel from
accessing restricted information. The Group's computer system is
updated on a regularly basis to prevent information leakage due

to cyber-attacks.

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group places great value on every employee and considers
them to be the most valuable and significant assets. As a result,
the Group is committed to creating a suitable and ideal working
environment for its employees. The Group is committed to
protecting the rights and interests of employees and complying
with employment-related laws and regulations, including but
not limited to the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China,
Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, Social
Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China and Employment

Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment, and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits and welfare that have a significant impact on

the Group.
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Employee Overview
As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed a total of 202
(2021/22: 184) employees, which are all full-time employees. The

distribution of employees by gender, age group and geographical

RIE-#HERELRS

BTHE

A =HE=R=+—H &R —HE
F202U BT (2021/224EF  184fi) » 952
BB T o UTHREFAMTIBBIZ MR « F 84

region is as follows: k&E 7 ET 5 :

Total Workforce Unit 2022/23 2021/22
ETHEY Efi 2022/23 2021/22
By gender

gk 3 E b

Male person(s) 52 65
sH A

Female person(s) 150 119
pogid A

By age group

BRERANES

Below 30 person(s) 97 68
30T A

30-40 person(s) 49 67
30-40B% A

41-50 person(s) 36 43
41-50%% A

51-60 person(s) 15 4
51-605% A

Above 60 person(s) 5 2
605% XA £ A

By geographical region

&8 5

Mainland China person(s) 192 179
Hh [ Ay it A

Hong Kong person(s) 10 5
BE A
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During the Reporting Period, the total turnover rate is 17% REHBE BENERKLEERZ17%
(2021/22: 20%), which the distribution of employee turnover rate (2021/22FE : 20%) » AT &R MER ~ E85

by gender, age group and geographical region is as follows: AR RtES PHNEERKEEER !
Employee Turnover Rate Unit 2022/23 2021/22
BTIREE Efi 2022/23 2021/22
By gender

RS 5

Male percentage 19 19
B4 Bt

Female percentage 17 21
pogid Bt

By age group

BRERENES

Below 30 percentage 15 27
30T Bt

30-40 percentage 22 21
30-40%% BLE

41-50 percentage 11 12
41-50%% Bt

51-60 percentage 33 0
51-605% Bt

Above 60 percentage 0 0
605% A £ BOL

By geographical region

M ER S

Mainland China percentage 18 20
Hh [ Ay ith Bt

Hong Kong percentage 10 40
A Bt

Total turnover rate percentage 17 20
ERARELLE Bt
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIF-HHERERES

1 1 X 2R

The Group has established a comprehensive employment FEBEBRISENERBREERAASRE
management system and a high-quality talent team. The Group MAAEK AEFEEERZETHTERE
signed employment contracts with the employees employed. The &% &4:THEEAESH > U R ¥ HER &
contract lists out the terms of employment, as well as the rights B BEFN HARERRLELERBSANE
and benefits of both parties, including remuneration, probationary B UREETIRS -BRMANERSERAM

period, and termination of employment contract arrangements, BERUTAR:

to protect the rights and interests of employees. Our employment

management system focuses on the following:

Recruitment and Promotion
BERSH

Benefits and Rights
EFREF

Regardless of gender, race, physical disability, marital status, religion, political
preference, or sexual orientation, we ensure that all employees receive fair
treatment and equal opportunities. Recruitment and promotion of our staff are
only based on work performance and capabilities. The Group’s Human Resources
Department arranges annual performance evaluation for our staff to provide
them with performance feedback, as well as to allow employees to understand
their own ability and room for improvement. The performance evaluation also
provides valuable information to management, helping the Group identify
talents for taking leading roles for the Group's future development.

Aam MR - EE - REGE - BRRA - R - BEIMNRE  RMEFRABEE
THERIAFHERTITEHE ERERSANER  RMUIRAGREETHN
ITHERBERENFTIE - FEENASHHSFEFHER/BETETENGIE &
BETFEIBNRERR EEITRESESRUESEMH AR BN
NHREEERHEESER EAEENELESF AT  TEEERRNER-

The Group's employees in the PRC participated in defined contribution schemes
associated with relevant provincial and municipal governments, under which
the Group and the employees in the PRC are required to make monthly
contributions to these schemes in accordance with relevant requirements. The
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC contribute funds to the pension in accordance
with the requirements of the relevant local and municipal governments. The
Group has arranged the Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme, a defined contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee whereby each of the Group (the employer) and the Hong Kong
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme in accordance with
relevant legislations.

FEENTEEENZ2ERBEAME TENRENREMNRHE  AEA K
HhBREEHAZEBRESAMKXFAEFHER -FEBRPENNER
BRREMAE THRARESNEERE AERCLHEETBEE S HRT
MAREHE PH—BIUGEKATEZEEBERAE -AEEH (BX) RESE
BREEHEREREN S ARt EFH MR
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Remuneration The remuneration of the Group’s employees is determined in accordance with

-

%
7

Working Hours and Leaves  The Employee Handbook sets out the employee’s working day and overtime

the duties and responsibilities of the relevant staff and the market trend.

FrEERESHMZEMEIMERBETSEZEE

T {EBFRE R R EA work arrangements. Employees can enjoy paid annual leave, marriage leave,
|—I maternity leave, paternity leave and breastfeeding leave according to their
TIJ positions.
rr (BEIFMIFBEEINITFEARBRIENZH BETHRBRAEETHE
9 B-BR-ER -BERKHLBRE-

Work Life Balance THIT(EELEE

The Group places a high value on achieving a work-life balance. FEESEERBRIFEEFENTEE LU
Moreover, the Group organizes various staff activities from time > ZEBERMPATEACHERAEERH
to time to provide employees with opportunities to socialize and BT EH AE2ETEELHIHHE  IZER
strengthen relationships, as well as to alleviate stress. 15> B IREF & TIEEE /] ©

We organized team building activities.

KA E R RES -

We organized
staff birthday
parties.
RMBEHEITE

Hg-

We held employee gatherings and lucky draw events.
EMBMEIREREEHITESH-
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Labour Standards

The Group has a zero-tolerance attitude towards child and
forced labor. The Group adheres strictly to the Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labor and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors to prevent the
employment of underage workers and forced labor. We implement
various preventive measures to eliminate the possibility of such

practices.

Identity cards are verified during recruitment to ensure
applicants meet the legal age requirement for work. In addition,
confirmation of employment requires approval and review by
multiple departments to ensure compliance and minimize the
possibility of hiring child labour. In case of child labour or forced
labour, we will immediately ask the personnel to stop work and
investigate the recruitment process of the Human Resources

Department to avoid the same situation in the future.

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

The Group aims to promote physical health among it employees,
and places great importance on both psychological and physical
well-being. Additionally, the Group is committed to providing
a safe working environment for its employees. Employees are
expected to adhere to safety guidelines and prioritize personal
hygiene. We formulated safety and health policies in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited to
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and

Control of Occupational Diseases.

RIE-#HERELRS
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IEETRAHSTHBEREE - RMAER
ZIRTAR M WBRE T RRH S THE
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The Group’s work-related injury rate and work-related mortality
rate remained at zero. The number of working days due to work-
related injuries is zero during the Reporting Period. The Group
did not have any work-related fatalities in the past three years
(including the Reporting Period). During the Reporting Period, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to provide a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards that have a

significant impact on the Group.

Health and Safety Measures
fRERRZ 2

FERNISEXRRAIETRERRZT K
EERKREHELERTHEXTFER
RBE=ZER (BEREHE) TREZLEER
TIRTEZR - REHME > AEEL AR BERA
BEERARARMZEZIRERFEREES
BEBEMEINZRERRG MEEER
EEXEATENER

e Physical examinations are arranged annually by the Group. In case of any abnormal health conditions are

identified, follow-up actions will be taken, and internal transfers may be performed where applicable to reduce

further exposure to incompatible work environments

BEABILHSERE WIFHRETAIEARE  BERIFRRM LR R#ERRE

e In case staff are involved with tasks which may be potentially hazardous, appropriate instruments and suitable

safety equipment are provided to the employees
ARIRZ2REBEEHRIFNEIRMBEEIARZEZRE

e Provide fire and emergency drill for employees

BEIRMHBRERER

e Offices are designed with the ergonomics consideration to reduce the likelihood of occupational injuries

MAERBARIZRER  MEEMTHHEEE

e Provide refreshments to staff during summer period to reduce the risk of heat stroke
EXREABTRERE REXAPSNER
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group recognizes the significance of staff training and
development in achieving sustainable business growth. We
actively encourage employees to pursue ongoing education and
training to acquire new knowledge and expand their skillsets
into new areas. To support this goal, the Group has developed
an annual training plan that offers various internal and external
training opportunities for employees to enhance their professional

knowledge and personal capabilities.

Since government policies with regards to medications and
other associated regulations are frequently revised, the Group
also provides subsidies for employees to consistently acquire
latest knowledge to support their development of professional
knowledge. Upon completion of the training courses, reviews are
performed in effort to further optimize future in-house training
programs. We also provide further education opportunities to our
nursing team as we arranged them to attend training in hospitals

in the top-3 tiers.

To facilitate the understanding of the Group, an induction training
program is provided to all our new recruits. The training program
covers the Group's history, operating philosophy, business process
and corporate culture. Since the specifics of tasks and situations
encountered during daily work cannot be taught comprehensively
in a classroom environment, experienced staff are arranged to

guide new employees and provide them with guidance daily to

adapt to the job position smoothly.

We invited professors from top 3-tier
hospital to offer trainings.

HFIBEE =R P F B BURE AHEI -

RIE-#HERELRS

ST RAEI
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Nurses were sharing her experiences to

junior nurses.

IR R E LD ZAEER -
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During the Reporting Period, training data by gender and REE HZERESERE 5B

employee category is as follows: BT
Employee Training Unit 2022/23 2021/22
ESE:N Efu 2022/23 2021/22

Percentage of employee trained

RINEIBSLE

By gender

BRI E 5

Male percentage 60 80
SH B

Female percentage 92 79
pog i3 Bt

By employee category

RESENES

Senior Management percentage 33 43
BREERE B

Middle Management percentage 81 78
PAREIEE Bt

General staff percentage 88 79
—RET Bt

Average training hours completed per

employee
BRETIZINTI9RH
By gender
R & 5
Male hour(s) 3 3
B4 INEF
Female hour(s) 4 3
ek NS
By employee category
RESENE S
Senior Management hour(s) 38 11
BREERE INEE
Middle Management hour(s) 7 10
hiREIRE INBF
General staff hour(s) 1 1
—RET NS
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is a socially and environmentally responsible
corporation that recognizes the importance of protecting the
environment during business development. The Group is dedicated
to promoting the development of a green cycle that encompasses
the environment, society, and economy. One of the Group’s
long-term goals is to reduce greenhouse gas emissions related
to its operations. Although the Group’s business operations do
not significantly impact the environment or natural resources,
the Group remains committed to minimizing any negative

environmental impact resulting from its operations.

The Group strive to comply with laws and regulations related
to environmental protection, including but not limited to the
Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Environmental Impact Assessment, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes, Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Regulations on the Administration of
Medical Wastes, Measures for Medical Wastes Management of
Medical and Health Institutions, Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap. 311 of the Law of Hong Kong) and Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Law of Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that have

a significant impact on the Group.

RIE-#HERELRS

IRIG (A&
FEFE—EAHHERIREEEENEE
FRTEFERBEPTRERRENEEZM -
FEBRINHEIRE - HEREENGE
BIRZER TRAMCRASEEBNEERE
FHREMRBERZ - -sEBEBLRY
RHBRERRAERNERZE  BRMAMN
RORLEBHEEEBRETRNTE

FEERNETHREREBBNERE
B BREEFRRR(PEARENMBARARSHR
BiiaE) s (REARFEMEIKSREBAE)
(PEARENBIRIBRZENEE) ~ (P
ARHMEEREERYIS RIRIRFIEE) (R
EARHANBRREREZ) - (BREEVE
BEAD)  (BEEERBBREREEVEEN
N BRIEMNFINE(ERISRE RO K
BREDIBIAE(BERMEERA) -

BREHE rEBEANEACREERE
FERICEEREHR - MK KL tEIHES
EERESERMNELENEZRRRA M
HEAEEELEEARENEE

BEREEZERERAR 43
2022/23 1R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR-HERERERS

Combatting Climate Change

As the international community continues
to focus on climate change, the Group
recognizes the risks associated with this
global issue in its business operations. The
effects of climate change have resulted
in more frequent occurrences of extreme

weather events.

For pharmaceutical wholesale and

distribution business, the increased

RETAR
Certificate of Appreciation

Tah Carticate is Prasarted t2

‘Wanjia Group Holdings Limited

BCENMETEMPI0INIALE BTN
0 el TR — ) 3000

In sppeeciation of your support far WWT -Hasg Kong't
Earth Hour 202% on 25 Masch 2023,

EHREEE
BEERTEHREE{EER
mRE AEERRIEERE
EhRREEECHEBNAR R
FEEERBHERREHFIAE SR
o

REmMB B R DHES > BIHRR
(WERRAF) F4H
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frequency and intensity of extreme

weather events (such as heavy

rains, typhoons, etc.) may affect the

We participated in Earth

transportation of drugs and increase the

Hour 2023 to support energy

time for drugs to be transported to medical

consumption reduction and

institutions. For hemodialysis treatment and

combatting climate change

consulting business, extreme heat or cold

BEERKREEEM
AREEXEEMESR
12N R E # B B A
B BY BT o B IR B AR
REKRERES B
REANBSAREETHT

BETIREN AR

IR E2023IKk—/\BFSE
g U FR D BE TR EFEFN FE

may affect patients who need hemodialysis
treatment, for example, it may worsen their

RIEEME-

physical condition.

The Group has developed policies such as Typhoon Contingency
Plan to address the potential threats posed by climate change
regarding the possible impacts of these extreme weather
conditions. We develop appropriate workflows and measures,
including back-up plans, to prevent or mitigate the impacts of
climate change on the transport or treatment of medicines. In
addition, we have developed extreme weather management
measures to address more frequent extreme weather events due
to climate change. For example, we set out work arrangements
in our Employee Handbook for different typhoon and rainstorm
situations to ensure the safety of our employees while maintaining

our business operations.

As a responsible company, we are also committed to reducing
wastes and greenhouse gas emissions from our business,
providing energy management and efficiency improvement of
energy consumption equipment, thereby reducing greenhouse gas

and exhaust emissions.
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Air Pollutants and Greenhouse Gas ("GHG")
Management

During the Reporting Period, the Group's greenhouse gas
emissions are mainly associated with electricity consumption
from our storage warehouse for pharmaceutical products and
hemodialysis centres. All warehouse and hemodialysis treatment
centers are equipped with environmental control measures that
regulate temperature and humidity in accordance with seasonal
changes, ensuring the quality of the medicine stored within these

premises.

The Group's logistics department is responsible for delivering
goods, which involves the consumption of fossil fuels and
the emission of greenhouse gases into the atmosphere.
Acknowledging the potential environmental impacts of its logistics
activities, the Group has optimized the delivery routes taken by its
vehicles to minimize fuel consumption and associated emissions.
The Group is dedicated to reducing emissions and greenhouse gas

emissions through the implementation of these measures.

RIE-#HERELRS
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s air pollutants and GHG REHRE AERNERRAERBEHERE

emissions data is as follows: BT
Types of Emission Unit 2022/23 2021/22
BERERR E (i 2022/23 2021/22

Air pollutants

BE Rk

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 66.77 14.36
A8ty Ny

Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.34 0.20
ey NS

Particulate matters (PM) kg 5.53 0.66
FERIY NS

Greenhouse gas emission’

= R AR HER

Scope 1 - Direct emissions Tonnes CO:2 equivalent 64.46 40.32

SEEN -EIEHR A _FIEREE

Scope 2 - Energy indirect emissions Tonnes CO:2 equivalent 462.32 629.76

SBE2 -sE TR B HEEHEK A _HIEREE

Total GHG emission Tonnes CO:2 equivalent 526.78 670.08

MAEREHRE AW_SEHRER

Intensity Tonnes CO: equivalent/ 0.00° 0.00?

thousand HK$ revenue

RE AM_EEHREE FTHETKE

Note 1:  Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated in the unit of carbon HE1 . BRERBEIREBEU_ELTHREER
dioxide equivalent. Mo

Note 2: The actual value is 0.004. HeE2 . B FA0.0040

Note 3:  The actual value is 0.003. B3  BR#FA0.003¢
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Sustainable Energy Consumption

The Group is dedicated to implementing energy-saving measures
that aim to improve energy efficiency and reduce energy
consumption. During the Reporting Period, we we participated
in Earth Hour organized by the World Wildlife Fund to support
energy reduction and combatting climate change.

In addition, our internal energy-saving measures include:

\

REERSRER HLRARERWER26E

RIE-#HERELRS

ERER

FEFBNETHEREK SERSERNY
mR D BEROHE - RS MM A2 R TH
HREAEEGHEBBIX—/NEF I U
SFFRO RN R R IREE

HESh > B I A EREISEFE FE B4

@ Limit the use of air conditioning by setting the facilities to 26 degree Celsius

Promote energy saving practices including green commuting, carpooling

I through employee handbook
o—0

\

M

BREIFMMSETHENAERR  SERAGEBHITIMHECE  AINHE

M
— Arrange inspection by designed personnel to ensure electrical equipment and
é lighting are switched off during non-office hours

— ZHERIE A BT » FE (R E 23 5% 14 S TR AT FR I A B ] B (7R 455 A A

N\ /7
. . Use energy efficient equipment
p N fEFRENAE SR 1
r | Turn off electric devices when they leave their seats
G B EEMAEFRERBENE
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During the Reporting Period, the Group's energy consumption

data is as follows:

AR AR RHERBNT ¢

Types Unit 2022/23 2021/22
Epill) Efi 2022/23 2021/22
Direct energy

E#ZsER

Petrol consumption MWh 191.50 88.37
FUHHFE TE T 55

Diesel consumption MWh 4.24 0.30
SOHHFE TE T 5 5

Natural gas consumption MWh 37.11 71.37
RARHFE TE T 5B

Indirect energy

FIHEREIR

Purchased electricity MWh 757.78 1,032.23
SMBE TE T 5.5

Total energy consumption MWh 990.63 1,192.27
HBREIRAERE F1EF LB

Intensity MWh/thousand HK$ revenue 0.01 0.01
RE FEFERE,FHETRE

Waste Management

The Group is dedicated to implementing waste reduction
measures at the source and properly disposing of all waste
produced to minimize the impact on the environment and
ecosystem. To achieve this goal, the Group has established waste
management procedures that outline the proper classification and

disposal of waste generated during daily operations.
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In terms of hazardous waste, the Group returns the medicine
requiring disposal to the supplier or deliver it to medical waste
contractors designated by the government, in accordance with
our Loss Reporting and Destruction Policy. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not encounter any material cases where
goods required return to the supplier due to defects nor
generated any hazardous. For non-hazardous waste, we support
waste reduction at source and actively upgrade its electronic office
system, such as enterprise resource planning system to enhance
communication among employees and reduce the use of paper
for information dissemination. We encourage recycling and set up

waste recycling procedures:

©) —

~
%

<_)

RIE-#HERELRS

EEEERMSE ~EEERARENE
VRO EMEHRIZR(RBAHREER
E)RXHBBMNEENBRERYEIERNEE
TRE-RESHPHE sEEXRFRIEAER
HEREMEROHEFIUAESERZDT
ANRENBER EESEEYSE  ZfAXEH
RERREE RBEMEF MR AIMEE
BERE AR - ILARMKAEMBE T ZHEHE
B ERLUR O ERAES NEERS - &M
SRETREBR LRIUBEERYEIWRERF

Ny

\

Classification 948
Sperate general waste in

the office and provide waste

Collection Y
Collect classified waste regularly

ERKOBRNBEMETHE

Recycling [E]U&
Utilize local recycling facilities to

recycle generated wastes

classification facilities at
different locations

BMAE—REYDE > BE
FrAE B RIEEEY D ERE

In addition to hazardous and non-hazardous waste, a large
amount of medical wastewater is generated during the
hemodialysis process. The Group strictly adheres to the laws and
regulations in relation to medical sewage discharge to dispose
of such wastewater, through collecting it in a sewage tank,
and discharge it to municipal sewage pipes after biochemical
treatment and chlorine dioxide disinfection to make sure the
sewages are upon reaching water quality standards. During the
Reporting Period, we strictly monitor the wastewater and conduct
sampling test to ensure the absence of intestinal infectious

bacteria.

) A E th 89 [0 Wy 5% 5 [0 Wa FR &2
EREEY

BRTEERESNERERY ETIMREFRB
BPEEEAREBREK FNEBEBRRER
BRSKEIMERIERREREIEE L
Ko m—IREREK KBETCRER-SR
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s waste produced is as RSB AEENEEYEEONT
follows:

Types of waste Unit 2022/23 2021/22
EEmEE B 2022/23 2021/22

Hazardous waste'’

BEEEEY

Total Tonnes 63.63 16.68
we YN

Intensity Kg/thousand HK$ revenue 0.37 0.00?
RE AR/ FRTWE

Non-hazardous waste

BEEEY

Total Tonnes 6.85 6.30
we NI

Intensity Kg/thousand HK$ revenue 0.04 0.04
BE AR/ FARTWE

Wastewater

pip 3

Total m3 860.24 735.74
we RV

Note 1: The data of hazardous waste in 2021/22 has been HeE1: AENE2EMNLERFMAORIT > &

restated since the Company has enhanced the process RERBRSHANEBLCHEBEKRESR
of data collection in the Reporting Period to perform a 2 EI2021/22EENEEEEY
more comprehensive comparison. HNEEEET] -

Note 2:  The actual value is 0.0001. B2 BEHEFA0.00010
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IRIF-HHERERES

Water Conservation B9k E IR

The Group’s business does not involve significant use of water, AEBEBHEATREARNBKEIR R
and we have not encountered any issue in sourcing water that is FRKELETIEEABE ZERFTEN
fit the purpose. The Group's primary source of water consumption AKKBEREETHERK AREMHKK
is the daily usage by its employees. To promote water conservation RERKNE ~EEEKREAKESI A
and improve water efficiency, the Group has included internal (BIFM) UHRAOGEHKRAEER L
water usage guidelines in its Employee Handbook and strives to ¥ ZNEMMIRERFRIRMIRE  RBETH
integrate water conservation into its operations. Additionally, the AKREGEENRE RSB ~EEBFEH
Group has posted reminders in restrooms to encourage employees KEBRNEENT

to adopt an appropriate attitude towards water usage. During the

Reporting Period, the Group's data on water consumption is as

follows:

Water Consumption Unit 2022/23 2021/22
KE R B i 2022/23 2021/22
Total m?3 50,560.30 49,050.17
s IR

Intensity m3/thousand HK$ revenue 0.29 0.32
RE IHRFETKE

Reducing Packaging Material WL aRME

The Group consumes packaging materials for the delivery of AEBEEGEMBRERIVERTE
pharmaceutical goods to its customers. We try to avoid providing F FEER - BRBRAEBEZ -BMNEEESR
plastic bags to our customers to limit the use of plastic bags. MEFRMERE LURVEBFERE - RS
During the Reporting Period, the Group's consumption of  HBRI > AEBEMESEYESHEEWT :
packaging materials is as follows:

Packaging Material Unit 2022/23 2021/22
BRMEHE Efi 2022/23 2021/22
Total Tonnes 122.05 143.70
wme YN

Intensity Kg/thousand HK$ revenue 0.70 0.93
RE AR/ FRTHE
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group serves customers with heart, and also cares about
serving the community. As a company that provides hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC, we focus
on promoting health activities and promoting the message of
kidney health caring in the community. In the future, the Group
looks forward to contributing more to the community. We strive to

use the resources to support people in need and promote healthy

living.
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RIE-#HERELRS

INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND (818 -t ERE4ikEI5E|)ZE3|
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES

Aspect Content Section
FTEHE AR E=3:0]

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

34 1l 4% B8 AR E

Governance A statement from the board containing the following elements: Sustainable
Structure i a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues; Governance
BEAREE ii.  the board's ESG management approach and strategy, including the  EJ{FEEEEA

process used to evaluate, prioritize, and manage material ESG-related
issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses); and

iii.  how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related goals
and targets with an explanation of how they relate to the issuer’s
businesses.

HMEFFREHMNEH ERHBTIAS

. WEESEHREBE - HEREARAZTEMNEE;

i. EEgNRE-HEREABEAHKRE @FTH -ERFFRK
EREEMNRE - HERELAEMEE (EEHBETAZETNER)

E"Ji@%ﬂi)
i. EBEFEWMARIRR-HERELSEFAESEER EREBEEMUW
AEFITAEBERAE

Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the Reporting Reporting Principles
BE ¥R J& Y Principles (Materiality, Quantitative and Consistency) in the preparation of #R& /R 8l

the ESG report.

HANBEERERRE HEREARSFUNGTEAERRR (EEMH -

BER—8M) -

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and Reporting Period
P& ¥R &6 [ describing the process used to identify which entities or operations are and Scope
included in the ESG report. RS A R EE

BERE - HEREABRTNEREE AN ERLEETRHEFTAA
RE-HERESRSENERE
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL

AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — &
- continued

Aspect Content

T2 RE

(RIE-HERESHRSIES )RS

Section

31

"Comply or explain” Provisions

IRETRERIRX

A. Environment

IR

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEAT : HERY

General Disclosure Information on:

—RRIREE (a)

the policies; and

Environmental

Protection

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant IRiE{R:&

impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and

land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

48

B

=
i

» &
BTHETARE

— =

a)
b) FENERERRRAINER -

A1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

HEEE R R R B R BE o

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions

and, where appropriate, intensity.

BHiZ (8E1) hibREE (HE2) REREHREREE-
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES

- continued

Aspect
FTEHE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IRIF-HHERERES

=
=

Content
AR

(RF-HERES

wmERSIDRSI

Section

31

Aspect A1: Emissions — continued

BEAT : BE¥)— &

A1.3

Al.4

Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity.

FREEAESREMBERTE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity.

FREEREREVMBERTE -

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

BTN EERR B EDELEBRARINT -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and
a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
HRREEERBEBEEYNG I RWAMTINRERRRAED
ELEBEFEREA T R -

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 . BiRER
General Disclosure

— IR E

A2.1

A2.2

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other

raw materials.

BRERAER (BFEER KR EMERME) BEK-

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.

RENONEER HHEEEREEERTE

Water consumption in total and intensity.

Waste Management
BEEYER

Waste Management

BEEMERE

Air Pollutants
and Greenhouse
Gas ("GHG")
Management

BEREAEREEIE

Waste Management
BEEYER

Environmental
Protection
IRIG(RE
Sustainable Energy
Consumption

ERER

Water Conservation

BEKEREE- ENAKE R
BREEIZRERAR
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF- 112 REREEIESINESI
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45

— continued

Aspect Content Section

TEHE ES =1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources — continued

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to Sustainable Energy
achieve them. Consumption
BRI REANE B R R A EIE LR RIS R - ERBER

A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for ~ Water Conservation

purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 4K E R
R EGE R KR R A EABE URMIILNAKEEEERAE
FE L B EMEEN L B -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products, and if applicable, with Reducing Packaging
reference to per unit produced. Materials
NRmPTAEEMENEEREEEEMLS- PEAN ISV o

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3  RIERRXAEIR

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment  Environmental

— AR and natural resources. Protection
WERZETAHRRERRAERERERTENER IRIERE

A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and Environmental
natural resources and actions taken to manage them. Protection
HAEBEHHIRERRAEFNEAZERERNEEREBTENT RRFRE
o
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IRIF-HHERERES

INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF- 112 REREEIESINESI
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45

— continued

Aspect Content Section

TERE ES =1

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEA4 . RIREL

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues Combatting Climate
— iR EE which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. Change

A REHEERAIEEHETAEERENEARGFEMEENKR - BHRERE(E

A4 .1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, Combatting Climate
and those which may impact, the issuer and the actions taken to manage Change
them. P& ¥t mAR 1L
HAEEROEEHETAELERENEAREGEHERAEE  REHTH
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF- 112 REREEIESINESI
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45
- continued
Aspect Content Section
TEHE ES =1
B. Society
He

Employment and Labor Practices

EBREKRELER

Aspect B1: Employment

BEB1 : E1E
General Disclosure Information on: Caring for
—MRIRE (a) the policies; and Employees
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant BAZ & T
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
BN R AR -BEREA TEHERA - TEHE St R
MUREMEBEREFA
(@ HBR; R
(b) BFHETABEATENHEREZRERRAGINER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical Employee Overview
region. BTHE
Bt BEEE FRENKMES DHNESBH -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Employee Overview
BMER - FRARNKMES HHNEERKLEER- ETHE
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF- 112 REREEIESINESI
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45

— continued

Aspect Content Section

TERE ES =1

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EmEB2 : BEEZE

General Disclosure Information on: Occupational Safety
—RINE (a) the policies; and and Health
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Wi %2 B #E
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
FRMZE2TIFRERRERESECHELBEN
(@) HBR; R
(b)

b) EBTFHETABEATZENMHERZEERRANER -

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past Occupational Safety
three years including the reporting year. and Health
BE=F (OEEREE) SERATTHMABKLIEE. BEZ2RER

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Safety
RTEELXTERHK- and Health

B2 HER

B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they Occupational Safety
are implemented and monitored. and Health
RPN B X R E L 21 U RMEARITHNERS %o W2 EER
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF- 112 REREEIESINESI
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45

— continued

Aspect Content Section

TEHE ES =1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEmEB3 : &K1l

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Employee
— iR EE duties at work. Description of training activities. Development and
BRRARERIT TFB &R R B AE A B - # it 15 allES o Training
BT #REAEI
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category.  Employee
BURESENIITNZIIEET DL Development and
Training
BT #REAEI
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Employee
employee category. Development and
BENKREEHERNS D SHEERTEZININTFHEE- Training
BT #REAEI

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EmEBR4 : &5 T AR

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standard
— BRI E (a) the policies; and &5 T 28

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BRAPG L E Ty 55 T !
(a) HBZER; R
(b)

b) BFHBETABEAXENHEBEERAGINER-
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Labour Standard
forced labour. & T 28|

st B E AR E LB R E T KR5aHI % T o
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IRIF-HHERERES

INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIE- -t ERERBRSEIES)ESI

AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — &

- continued

Aspect Content Section
FTEHE AP E=3:0]

Aspect B4: Labour Standards — continued
fEHEB4 : B T#RA|—#&

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate child and forced labour practices  Labour Standard
when discovered. & T 4R
HATEERERBREHMRA B RAT R D B o

Operating Practices

ZEEN

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[E@EB5 : HEHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.  Supplier

—MRIRE BIEHEHNIRIE R R - Management

HEmEE

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supplier

BEtEB DN EERESE - Management
e S 18

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers Supplier
where the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented Management
and monitored. HEBEE
HAEMERMEENES mERTHERMEMNMREEEE » U KRB
WITRERAE

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks Supplier
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. Management
M AR# R HERESERANRIERTERARNES  UKRBERNT HEBEE
RERFE

BEEERZERARAT
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INDEX TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL (IRIF- 112 REREEIESINESI
AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDELINES — 45

— continued

Aspect Content Section

TEHE ES =1

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management — continued
[BmEBS : frEREE &

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable Supplier
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are Management

implemented and monitored.

B5.4 BATHREHESRREESRRREMMRBHNES  UREMATR MHEBER
BEEAFE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EmEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: Operating Practices
— PRI E (a) the policies; and EEIEA

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters

relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.

ERfMRMERRRBHNBRAZE B - RERMREEURBHS

EHY

(a) B R

(b) BEBTFHETABEATZENHERZEERRANER -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety Product and Service
and health reasons. Quality
BENCEXEMBHPRZEARREAMALRKNBE DL EmkiRFEE

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they After-sales Service
are dealt with. and Complaint
BEMARERARBENGFREBEURER 5% Management

EBBRBRRHFE
I8
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility — continued
[BHEB6 : EmBIE—&

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
B6.3 property rights.
R RIERHEEBRNER -
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
HAEEREBREREmBIKERF-
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are

implemented and monitored.

B EEENRERALRER  UREARITRERS &

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : R&S

General Disclosure Information on:

Operating Practices
SEES

Product and Service
Quality
EnkREESE

Customer Privacy
Protection

ERLRRE

Business Ethics

—MRIRE (a) the policies; and mEEE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BB IEIRRR - R BEF RO R ERAY ¢
(a) HBE; R
(b) BFHETAREARTENHERZERKRRGNER -

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought Business Ethics
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the [EEFEEE
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAHETANHEEERE T ESENESHABZHNHE ki
EREER o
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption — continued
[BEB7 : RES—4&

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.
M B EERBRER > UWRAERRITRERS A

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
HiimEERETIRHENRESE

Community

HE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EMEBRS : t&IEE

General Disclosure

— AR B

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities takes
into consideration communities’ interests.
BERUHEZERTREEMEIHERERBREAXF EHEETRILE
A 2 B BER ©

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution.

FEEMEE-

B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus areas.

EEIHEMBAER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) acknowledges
the need and importance of corporate governance as one of the
key elements in creating shareholders’ value. The Company is also
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance
that can properly protect and promote the interests of all
shareholders and to enhance corporate value, accountability and
transparency of the Company.

The Company strived to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code”) as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing Securities on Main Board (the “Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as the deviation
from the code provision C.2.1, separation of roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code provision C.2.1 as
disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.
The board of directors (the “Board”) considers that the Company
was in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code from 11 October 2013, being the date of listing of
the Company, to the date of this Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) since 11 October 2013, being
the date of listing of the Company, up to the date of this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its model code
for securities transactions by Directors. The Company, having
made specific enquiry, has confirmed with the Directors that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s operation is

vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval of
all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring of the performance
of the senior management. The directors of the Company
("Directors”) make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. Currently, the Board comprises five Directors,
including one executive director, one non-executive director

and three independent non-executive directors:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Xiao Zhixin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Their biographical details and relationships among the
board members, if any, are set out in the section entitled
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”

in this annual report.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies
and management of the Group’s businesses to the
executive Director, senior management and certain specific

responsibilities to the Board committees.
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Training and Support for Directors
The Company encourages the Directors to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Pursuant to C.1.4 of the CG Code, directors should
participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

Effective from 11 October 2013, the date of listing of the
Company, up to the date of this report, regulatory updates
and relevant materials on amendments of the Listing
Rules have been sent to the Directors for their awareness
of the latest development on regulatory requirements, to
ensure that they are fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and relevant

regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under

the policy are to be reviewed regularly.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. After the former
chairman resigned from the Company in 2014, there is no
position of the chairman. The company did not have the
chairman during the year ended 31 March 2023. The Board
considered that the existing Board members were able to
share the power and responsibilities of chairman among

themselves during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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EXERHS

Mr. Wang Jia Jun has been appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 1 April 2020 and up to
the date of the report. The Company will, from time to
time, review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and consider whether any changes,
including the establishment of the role of the chairman.
Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Director, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
for a specific term. Such term is subject to his or her re-
appointment by the Company at an annual general meeting
upon such Director's retirement and offering himself for re-
election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third
of the Directors who have been longest in office since their
last election or re-election are also subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting. All retiring Directors
are eligible for re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Mr. Ho Man both possess
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
and financial management. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a
specific term of three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Tam
confirmed that he had taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2023.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee, an Audit Committee and
a Remuneration Committee (collectively “Board
Committees”) with defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board Committees are posted on the
website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange, and
are available to shareholders. Members of each of these
committees are independent non-executive Directors. The
list of the Chairman and of members of each committee is
set out in each of the following Board committee section.
The meeting procedures follow the statutory procedures for
Board meetings.

The committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and in appropriate circumstances, the
Company can retain external auditors, financial advisors and
lawyers and other relevant independent professionals to
provide independent professional advice to assist members
of the committees in fulfilling their responsibilities.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24
September 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rule and a copy
of which is posted on the website of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange. During the financial year, the Company
had revised the Terms of Reference for its Remuneration
Committee in order to fully comply with the amendments
to the Listing Rules in relation to corporate governance
that took effect since 1 January 2023. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the approach under code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code and made recommendations to
the Board on the Group's overall policy and structure for
the remuneration of Directors and senior management. The
members of Remuneration Committee for the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Mr. Wang Jia Jun
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include

(but without limitation):

(i)  making recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing

policies on such remuneration;

(i) determining the remuneration packages of all
individual executive Directors and the senior
management and making recommendations to the
Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

and

(iii)  reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and the senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with the relevant contractual terms

and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of specific remuneration package
of all executive Directors, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and making recommendations to
the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-

based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet once during
the financial year. During the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee will review the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors
and senior management. Regarding details relating to share
option schemes reviewed by the remuneration committee,

please refer to Share Option Scheme section.
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The Remuneration Committee held 4 meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2023.

Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
was established in 24 September 2013 with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27A and A.2.1 of
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rule and a copy of which is
posted on the website of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange. The members of Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee for the year and up to the date of

this report are:

Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

All of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
The primary duties of the nomination and corporate

governance committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations

to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorship;

(c)  making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer of the Company; and
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(d) keeping the effectiveness of the corporate governance

and system of internal controls of the Group.

Amendments of the Company’s Articles of Association have
been made during the year, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 28 July 2022 for details.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee shall
meet once during the financial year. During the meeting,
the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee will
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and review
the arrangement for re-election of all the retiring Directors
at the forthcoming general meetings of the Company and
the terms of reference of the Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee has
adopted a Board Diversity Policy (“Policy”). The Company
continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of its
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits
of diversity in the Board. A diversity of perspectives can
be achieved through engaging directors in possession
of gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, required experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, etc. The composition,
experience and balance of skills of the Board are regularly
reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new
Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring fresh
perspectives and diverse experience to the Board. The Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity in the Board.
The Board will continue to review the Policy to ensure its

continued effectiveness on an annual basis.
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As the Board currently comprises 5 male members, the Board
considers the need to nominate at least 1 female member
into the Board, so as to achieve the board diversity purpose.
The Nomination Committee will conduct the selection of
right candidate by the end of 2024. We will take initiatives
to identify suitable female directors through various

channels.

As at 31 March 2023, gender ratio of the workforce is
26% male and 74% female. We will continue to maintain
gender diversity among all our staff as the goal and review
our policies on employee recruitment and management in a
timely manner in accordance with the Company's business

development and needs.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held

2 meetings during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 24 September
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which is posted
on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
In order to comply with the amended CG Code, the
Board adopted the revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee on 31 December 2018. The members of Audit

Committee for the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Ho Man
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All of the committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit

Committee include, but are not limited to:

(@) reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

(b) monitoring integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and
accounts and the interim report;

(c) reviewing the Company’'s financial controls, risk

management and internal control systems;

(d) reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules.

The Audit Committee shall hold at least 2 regular meetings
in a year to review and discuss the interim and annual
financial statements of the Company. Additional meetings of

the Audit Committee may be held as and when required.

The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditors
at least once a year. The external auditors may request a

meeting if they consider necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee
held 3 meetings.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal control and financial reporting
matters for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Group's
audited consolidated financial results for the year ended 31
March 2023 were reviewed by the Audit Committee, which
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and

requirements and that adequate disclosures has been made.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for
appointment as the auditors of the Company at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance Function
The Board is collectively responsible for performing corporate

governance duties including:

(a) to develop and review an issuer's policies and practices

on corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the issuer’'s compliance with the Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Under the Company’s Code, the Board may delegate part
of the above duties to the Company's board committees.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Board
has, on its own and through the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee and Audit Committee, fulfilled the
above corporate governance duties. The Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee assisted the Board to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management.
The Audit Committee assisted the Board to review the
Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report and the policy on compliance

with legal and regulatory requirements.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’

ATTENDANCE

CG Code provision C.5.1 prescribes that at least 4 regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
the Directors, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Board has held
13 meetings. One executive Director and all independent
non-executive Directors attended all the meetings.

All members of the Board and the Company’s external
auditors attended the 2022 annual general meeting (“2022
AGM").
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Attendance record of each Director at the 2022 AGM and
the meetings of the Board, together with the meetings of
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee during the year ended 31 March

2023 are set out below.
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Attendance/Number of Meetings
HERY/ ERRY

Nomination
and Corporate
Audit  Remuneration Governance

Board Committee Committee Committee 2022 AGM
Rek  CBCCE

Name of Directors Bty Ezxg BYZEY FWZEE MEERZET RRAEAD
Executive Directors BER
Mr. Wang Jia Jun TRERELE 13 NAR B 4 2 1
Non-executive Director FHTES
Dr. Xiao Zhixin AHERE 8 NAREH NARER NAREH 1
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Wong Hon Kit BEGRYE 13 3 4 2 1
Dr. Liu Yongping EERY 13 3 4 2 1
Mr. Ho Man [k 13 3 4 2 1
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis, and
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards,
with applicable disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and pursuant to the relevant statutory requirements. The
Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which reflect the financial information of the Group

with reasonable accuracy.

In respect of code provision D.1.3 of the CG Code, Directors
are not aware of material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” on

pages 110 to 119 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for
maintaining the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the assets of the
Group. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board to assist the

Board in fulfilling the above responsibilities.
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During the year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group,
which covers all material financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management functions, and considered the
risk management and informed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function. The Board concluded that the risk management

and internal control systems are adequate and effective.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems include a well-defined management
structure with limits of authority, clear policies, standard
operation procedures, and risk control self-assessment
conducted for all major operating units of the Group. The
system is designed to provide reasonable assurance of no
material misstatement or loss and to manage risks failure
in operational systems and achievement of the Group's

objectives.

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained, but the
management is responsible for designing and implementing
internal control systems to manage all kinds of risks faced
by the Group. The operating units and support functions are
facilitated and coordinated by the management, and ensure
that risk management processes and mitigation plans follow
good practices and guidelines established in their day-to-day

operations.

The Group’s risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing basis. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems is
evaluated at least annually to update the progress of risk

monitoring efforts.
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Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

Management will assess the nature and impact of risk, and
report issues to the Board. The Group identifies outside
and inside events by reviewing its external and internal
environment and stakeholders, which have an influence
or potential influence on the Group's ability to achieve its

strategy and business objectives.

The Board, according to the risk report, would take
appropriate action to eliminate the risks. Risks which cannot
be accepted or are beyond the Company’s risk appetite are
transferred, eliminated or controlled through risk mitigation
measures. Each risk mitigation measure has a process owner
who is a Department Manager and a target completion date
is assigned to ensure accountability. Risks owners are also
responsible for monitoring the status of the risk mitigation

measures for risks under their purview.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company has an internal audit function. The Board
and Audit Committee review the internal control issues
identified by external auditors, regulatory authorities and
management, and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’'s risk management and internal control
systems. To further enhance control awareness, the Group
has also approved launching a whistleblowing policy or
employees to raise any concerns about possible improprieties

in any matter related to the Group.

Inside Information Policy

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made. The
Company’s legal advisor also assists the Board to assess
whether the relevant information is considered to be
inside information which needs to be disclosed as soon as

reasonably practicable.
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Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, the
individual is required to declare such interest and to abstain
from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting
attended by Directors who have no material interest in the

transaction.

The Group also adopted certain internal control policies to

manage potential conflicts of interest.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed

as the Company's external auditors since the Company’s
incorporation. There was no disagreement between
the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external

auditors.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March
2023 is set out below:
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Amount (HK$'000)

Nature of services RFEMEE £% (F#&7)
Audit services BEIZRFE 650
Non-audit services JEEIZARTE S
Total et 650
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enable shareholders and

investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

Subject to the Listing Rules, any one or more Member(s)
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, on
a one vote per share basis, shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
or resolution specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such

requisition.

The members of the Board, Board Committees and the
external auditors are present to answer shareholders’
questions in the annual general meeting of the Company.
Meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders before
the annual general meeting and special general meetings
in accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down
in the Listing Rules and the articles of the Company. All the
resolutions proposed to be approved at the general meetings
will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the website of the Stock Exchange and of the Company

after the meetings.
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As a channel to promote effective communication, the EAHREERBEZEE FEERE
Group maintains a website where information on the Wik > M EBBREAAB Z A B
Company's announcements, financial information and BEHUREMERZER RERKEE
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors EAUEBARBTEARAZERETE
may write directly to the Company at its principal place of EEME BiEEH
business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.
The Company has in place a Shareholders’ Communication EATIEHIERRBARE  UHERR
Policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are RHNEREBAIBIEESRIE -AATH
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to EHAS S X BUR AR EL AR o

ensure its effectiveness.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wang Jia Jun (“Mr. Wang”), aged 34, was appointed as the
chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive
Officer”) with effect from 1 April 2020 and the executive
Director since 31 August 2018. Mr. Wang was also appointed as
the vice president of Zhuhai Shengchuang Medical Investment
Management Company Limited” (EBHEIBELEEERTRA
7) (an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
since 1 September 2022 and is responsible for developing and
implementing business strategies of the Company in the PRC. Mr.
Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Management from
Stony Brook University in the United States of America in 2011.
He also obtained a master's degree in Health Administration from
Columbia University in the United State of America in 2017. He
has over 5 years of experience in the areas of business analysis
and development across major cities in the PRC.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Xiao Zhixin (“Dr. Xiao"”), aged 82, was appointed as a
non-executive Director, with effect from 15 October 2021. Dr.
Xiao has over 50 years of experience in both medical practice
and management in the healthcare sector in the PRC. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in clinical medicine from lJilin
Medical University* (F# BRI KE)in the PRC in 1964. Since his
graduation from the medical school in Jilin Medical University,
Dr. Xiao has worked as a medical practitioner in Jilin No. 4
People’s Hospital* (F #4589 A B E&B%) until May 2018. From May
2018 to July 2018, Dr. Xiao was a medical practitioner in Jining
Rencheng Hanjun Beauty Hospital” (Z (L2 =R ER) . Dr.
Xiao was a medical practitioner in Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital” (Bk
EBABEERRD) from July 2018 to April 2019. From April 2019 to
present, Dr. Xiao is a medical practitioner in Zhuhai Yimei Ladies

Medical Beauty Clinic* Gr/BRERIBBEZSZ).

s English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (“Mr. Wong”), aged 56, is an independent
non-executive Director since 11 April 2003. Mr. Wong obtained
a Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University
in July 1991. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong was the independent
non-executive director of Lerthai Group Limited (stock code: 112)
between December 2018 and 15 August 2022, a company whose
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange till
15 August 2022, the date on which the listing of the company’s
shares was cancelled by the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was also
the independent non-executive director Xinhua News Media
Holdings Limited (stock code: 309) between February 2020 and
31 August 2021.
hold any directorship in any other public companies the securities

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong did not

of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas in the last three years.

Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in the corporate finance
industry. He has held various positions, including chief financial
officer, director and company secretary in different companies
in Hong Kong, where he has experience in handling corporate
finance transactions such as mergers and acquisitions, capital fund

raising and restructuring.
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Dr. Liu Yongping (“Dr. Liu”), aged 67, is an independent non-
executive Director since 27 February 2014. Dr. Liu is a practicing
solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant of a law firm in Hong
Kong. Dr. Liu has over 20 years of experience in the capital
market and merger and acquisition legal services sector. Dr. Liu
graduated from the University of London with a master’s degree
in law in 1987 and from the University of Oxford with a doctor’s
degree in philosophy in 1994. Apart from his appointment with
the Company, Dr. Liu has been acting as an independent non-
executive director of Yue Da International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 629, formerly known as Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited)
since June 2010; and an independent non-executive director of
Logan Group Company Limited (stock code: 3380) since 30 March
2023, all being listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Save as disclosed above, Dr. Liu did not hold any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three

years.

Mr. Ho Man (“Mr. Ho"), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 February 2018. Mr.
Ho has over 20 years of working experience in private equity
investment and finance and is currently the managing director of
an investment holding company. Prior to that, Mr. Ho served as
an executive partner representative of a Chengdu-based private
equity investment fund from December 2011 to May 2014. Mr.
Ho worked for a Hong Kong-based private fund management
company during January 2010 to December 2013 and was the
managing director and head of China growth and expansion
capital of CLSA Capital Partners (HK) Limited from August 1997
to October 2009. Mr. Ho was awarded an Executive Master of
Business Administration degree from Tsinghua University and a
master’s degree in finance from the London Business School. He is

also a Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ho is independent non-executive director of Fu Shou Yuan
International Group Limited (stock code: 1448), since December
2013; and an independent non-executive director of Grand Ocean
Advanced Resources Company Limited (stock code: 65) since 22
January 2020, all being listed on the Main Board of The Stock

Exchange.

Mr. Ho was an independent non-executive director of Magnus
Concordia Group Ltd (stock code 1172, formerly known as Midas
International Holdings Limited) between January 2018 and August
2022; an independent non-executive director of CIMC-TianDa
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 445, name changed from
China Fire Safety Enterprise Group Limited with effect from 24
April 2018) from July 2015 to January 2021 and the company was
privatised in January 2021; and an independent non-executive
director of Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code:
1777) between October 2009 and 11 October 2021. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Ho did not hold any directorship in any
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any

securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Sze Kin (“"Mr. Tam"), aged 53, holds a bachelor’s degree
of business administration in finance awarded by Simon Fraser
University in Canada. Mr. Tam is a member of The Chartered
Professional Accountants of Canada and a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam has over 20
years of experience in accounting, corporate finance, financial
reporting and company secretarial field. Mr. Tam had also held
senior management positions in the listed and private limited

companies in Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors
ESERS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) for the year ended 31

March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business, and provides hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business in the PRC. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required
by Schedule 5 to Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
including future development in the Group’s business, can be
found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of
this annual report. The above section form part of this “Report of

the Directors”.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group’s commitment to protecting the environment is well
reflected by the continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in its daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
also implements green office practices such as promoting the use
of recycled papers and reducing energy consumption by switching

off idle lighting and electrical appliances.

The Group reviews its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group's businesses and

enhancing environmental sustainability.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's operation for the year by business
activities is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements and the paragraphs headed “Business Review"” under
the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 and
the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 March 2023 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to 126 of this

report.

In order to ensure the Board maintains an appropriate procedure
on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company, a new dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) is
adopted by the Board on 8 November 2018 which aims to allow
the Shareholders to participate in the Company's profits whilst
preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth

opportunities.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Dividend Policy of the Company establishes the principles to
ascertain amounts that can be distributed to its shareholders as
dividend by the Company. Subject to the applicable law and its
Articles, the Company’s dividend payout will be determined based
on available financial resources, investment requirements and

taking into account optimal shareholders return.
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While determining the nature and quantum of dividend payout,
the Board would take into account the following factors, inter

alia:

. Our financial results;

o our cashflow;

° our shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;
o our current and future operations;

o our liquidity and capital requirements;

o taxation considerations;

o statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

o any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 248 of
this report. The summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at cost of
approximately HK$4.309 million during the year. Details of the
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
The Group’'s employees in the PRC participate in defined

contribution schemes provided by the relevant provincial and
municipal governments under which the Group and the employees
in the PRC are required to make monthly contributions to these
schemes in accordance with relevant requirements. The Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC contribute funds to the pension in
accordance with the requirements of the relevant provincial and

municipal governments.

The Group has arranged the Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee whereby each of the Group
(the employer) and the Hong Kong employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme in accordance with the relevant

legislation.

Details of the Group’s contributions to the retirement benefit plans

are shown in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on pages 123 to 124 respectively. Pursuant to applicable
statutory provisions of the Cayman Islands, the Company did not
have reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as at
31 March 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreement
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
35.90% of the Group’s revenue and the Group’'s five largest

customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 72.34%.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented approximately 64.82% of the Group’s total value
of purchases. The Group’s largest supplier accounted for

approximately 39.53% of the Group’s total value of purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in the share

capital of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year

and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Xiao Zhixin

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Jia Jun, the executive Director, and
Dr. Liu Yongping, the independent non-executive Director of the
Company, will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Dr. Liu Yongping (“Dr. Liu”) was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director since February 2014. Pursuant to Code
Provision B.2.3 of the Corporate Governance Code under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, if an independent non-
executive Director has served more than nine years, such Director’s
further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by the Shareholders, hence Dr. Liu's re-election
will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders at the AGM. In view of Dr. Liu having served as an
independent nonexecutive Director for more than nine years, the
Board took into consideration Dr. Liu's valuable contributions,
impartial opinions and independent guidance over the years at
office, the continuing demonstration of his character, integrity and
experience, and is of the view that Dr. Liu has and will continue
to maintain his independence and will be able to continue to
discharge his role as an independent non-executive Director
effectively and independently. The Board is also of the view
that Dr. Liu's in-depth understanding of the Group's business
operations and his extensive experience and expertise in the areas
of corporate finance and accounting can continue to bring a wide
spectrum of insights to the Board and is in the best interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Company has
received from Dr. Liu a confirmation of independence according to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and Dr. Liu did not engage in any

executive management of the Group.
All other Directors will continue in office.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set on pages 84 to 87 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wang Jia Jun has been appointed as an executive Director of
the Company by way of a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on 31 August 2018
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less then three months’ notice in
writing. Mr. Wang Jia Jun has entered into a letter of employment
with the Company to act as the Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 1 April 2020.

Dr. Xiao Zhixin has been appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company by way of a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on 15 October 2021
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less than one months’ notice in

writing.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 April 2013 which will continue thereafter
until either the independent non-executive Director or the
Company may terminate the agreement by giving the other party

not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Dr. Liu Yongping has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 27 February 2014 which will continue
thereafter until either the independent non-executive Director or
the Company may terminate the agreement by giving the other

party not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ho Man has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company by way of letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 14 February
2018 which will continue thereafter until either the independent
non-executive Director or the Company may terminate the
agreement by giving the other party not less than three months’

written notice in writing.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interests whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by Directors is currently in force and was
in force throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policy of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and those of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Ms. Yung Kai Lai
(“Ms. Yung”), spouse of Mr. Wang Jia Jun, the executive Director,
had invested in certain clinics which were engaged in hemodialysis
treatment. As advised by Ms. Yung, the clinics that she invested
in are allocated in other cities of the PRC that the Group's clinics
had no presence there. The Board noted the fact that hemodialysis
patients could not travel long distance, e.g. cross cities, for
treatment due to their health issues and affordability. Hence, there
is no direct competition between the hemodialysis treatment offered
by the Group and that offered by the clinics invested by Ms. Yung.
Save as disclosed, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the
Directors or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) has any interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict of
interest with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Disclosure of Interests

(a) Directors’ interest and short position in the securities
of the Company
As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in
the Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long position in Shares and underlying Shares of the RAERERARIEHBR G ZFE
Company
Total Total Approximate
interests interests in percentage
in ordinary underlying Aggregate of issued
Name of Director Nature of interests Shares Shares interests Shares
HERT
REERZ REMARHZ Rz
EEns EmttE Rz 4EE B Bz  HBHESH
(Note 3)
(H¥3E3)
Mr. Wang Jia Jun Interest of spouse 156,862,198 2,500,000 163,155,611 29.12%
("Mr. Wang”) (Note 1)
TEREE FofB#s
(TEHE)) (MizE1)
Beneficial owner - 3,793,413
BamEBA
Mr. Wong Hon Kit Beneficial owner - 140,419 140,419 0.03%
("Mr. Wong") (Note 2)
BEGEE (THRE) BaEBA
(MEzE2)
Dr. Liu Yongping Beneficial owner = 140,419 140,419 0.03%
("Dr. Liu") (Note 2)
BTEEL (TAEL) BHEEBA
(PtsE2)
Mr. Ho Man Beneficial owner - 140,419 140,419 0.03%

("Mr. Ho") (Note 2)
g E (MakE)) (MsE2)

BmEAA
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wang is the beneficial owner of 3,793,413 share options.
Mr. Wang (being the spouse of Ms. Yung) is deemed to be
interested in 2,500,000 share options owned by Ms. Yung.
Power King Investment Development Limited (“Power
King”), a company wholly-owned by Ms. Yung, owns a total
of 156,862,198 Shares. Each of Ms. Yung and Mr. Wang is,
therefore, deemed to be interested in the 3,793,413 and
2,500,000 share options respectively and the 156,862,198
Shares held by Power King, under the SFO. Ms. Yung resigned
as the Director with effect from 15 October 2021.

2. Mr. Wong, Dr. Liu and Mr. Ho are interested in share options
which can be exercised to subscribe 140,419 Shares, 140,419
Shares and 140,419 Shares, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, the Directors
of the Company were not aware of any other person (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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(b) Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions

in shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2023, other than the interests of a director
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interest in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” above, the following persons
(not being a director or the chief executive officer of the
Company) have an interest or a short position in Shares
or underlying Shares which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

(b)

FERRMNAD B AR (7 Z 1 2 B i
 §

RZBE_=F=A=+—H KRLEXTE
ERFTETHRABRE QB REBBE
Bz HEERD R EESZEm —
HFRBAABEERNEETHRAEZ
B UTAL (FRBZEEFHITH
MEFRIN RIRODJEMAKRG FHEAR
BESREAEIRGIEXVEE 2R E3D 5
ZHENBEREAB B FAIRE 2
HKE > AT ABREZFRPE
1RBIE336REFEZECL MmN K
=1

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares total issued
Name Nature of interests (Long position) Shares
BT
AL ECE S
[T EmE RIZ&E (FE) BB
Power King (Note 1) Beneficial owner 156,862,198 28.00%
B (fisE1) BEmEAA
Expert Wealth Investments Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 156,862,198 28.00%
(Note 2)
Expert Wealth Investments Limited — F S #E&EEER (i3E2)
Grand Harbour Finance Limited Interest in controlled corporation 156,862,198 28.00%
(Note 2)
ShBMEBER AT REEGEE#ER (MEE2)
Ng Kwok Fai Beneficial owner of controlled 156,862,198 28.00%
corporation (Note 2)
S SEFEEzESEA A (MHsF2)
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Notes:

Power King is interested in 156,862,198 Shares. The issued
share capital of Power King is wholly-owned by Ms. Yung.
Mr. Wang is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which
Power King is interested in under the SFO.

Based on the notifications filed to the Company,
156,862,198 Shares owned by Power King were pledged
to Grand Harbour Finance Limited. Grand Harbour Finance
Limited is wholly owned by Expert Wealth Investments
Limited and Mr. Ng Kwok Fai is the controlling shareholder.
As all these companies were deemed or taken to be
interested in all the security in 156,862,198 Shares by virtue
of the SFO, and therefore Expert Wealth Investments Limited
and Mr. Ng Kwok Fai were deemed to have approximately
28.00% of interest in the Company as at 31 March 2023.
To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of
the Directors, after having made all reasonable enquires,
Grand Harbour Finance Limited and its ultimate owner(s) are
independent from and not connected with the Company and
its connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rule).

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their

spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or

had exercised any rights to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.

(E
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RIREESRAGERAN FIEZEA
BIWR AR E 156,862,198/ B2 15
HFTEIRIR R EE S > UL Expert
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Report of the Directors
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SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS EFERESERFZIBIGE

AND EMPLOYEES
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in KRB BRHESTE 2 BRI N BRETE —& -
the Share Option Scheme section.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, details of share options BHE_Z_=F=-A=+—HLEEER REBEER
granted to the Directors and employees under the Share Option BZEREGE EEREERETEREZFE

Scheme of the Company were as follows: mE:
Approximate
No. of percentage of
share options the underlying
No. of exercised/ No. of shares
share options cancelled/ share options for the share
outstanding lapsed during outstanding options
asat the year ended asat outstanding
Exercise price 1 April 31 March 31 March in the issued
Date of grant Exercisable period HKS 2022 2023 2023 Shares
REE
ki 4
=RA=+-8 HR1THE
g ot 12:3:5 RZBZZ% REZ
mA-HZ e/t ZRA=+-H2 RERRAE
it HRTTHE b3 ) HR1THE EELAE
RHAH Eitcd AT REsE REsE REsE BAEAL
Directors
s
Mr. Wang 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26 October 2028 0.668 1,293,413 - 1,293,413 0.23%
IrE ZE-\EtAZtRH ZE-\E+AZ+ABEZRN\ETBI+AA
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030 0.190 2,500,000 = 2,500,000 0.45%
Z2_2F¥MAZ+MA ZE2_ZENAtMAE_E=2EMA-MA
Mr. Wong 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26 October 2028 0.668 40,419 = 40,419 0.01%
BRE Z&5-\£+AZt+/A ZE-\ETAZ+AREZRINETAZ+AA
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030 0.190 100,000 - 100,000 0.02%
“ECEEMAZTREA CECZENACTRAE-RC2FMACTMA
Dr. Liu 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26 October 2028 0.668 40,419 - 40,419 0.01%
2t “&-\f+AZt7H ZE-\FTAZ+AHEZRINEHAZLAA
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030 0.190 100,000 - 100,000 0.02%
ZT_TEMACTMA R ZENAZtMAE-E=ZEMA-TMA
Mr. Ho 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26 October 2028 0.668 40,419 - 40,419 0.01%
fA%E “E-\EtAZtRH ZE-\E+AZ+ABEZRN\ETBI+AA
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030 0.190 100,000 = 100,000 0.02%
Z2_2F¥MAZ+MA 2 ZENAtMAE_E=2EMA_MA
Total 4,214,670 - 4,214,670
At
Employees 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26 October 2028 0.668 11,689,222 - 11,689,222 2.09%
&8 “%-)\f£+A-1+7H Z8-\£+BAZ+RAEZZCN\EHAZEAR
24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030 0.190 14,570,000 (Note) - 14,570,000 2.60%
“ECEEMACYRA CECZENACTRAE-ERCRFMACTMA
Total 26,259,222 - 26,259,222
&t
Grand total 30,473,892 - 30,473,892

3
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Note:

Among the 3,900,000 share options granted to the employees
of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, these share options are
exercisable in the following manner:

(i) up to 30% of the share options granted to each grantee shall
be exercisable on or after 24 April 2020 to 23 April 2021;

(i)  up to further 30% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2021 to 23
April 2022; and

(iii)  all the remaining 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2022 to 23
April 2023, and in each case, not later than 24 April 2030.

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in
the Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the headings”Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the company and its associated corporations” and “Share Options
Granted to Directors and Employees” above and particulars of the
Share Option Scheme as set out in Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate and neither the Directors nor the chief
executive, nor any of their spouses or children under the age of
18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share option

scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees and those other persons
that the Board considers that they will contribute or have
contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as described in
the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as compliment and to
reciprocate their contribution to the Group. As at 31 March 2023,
the maximum number of shares that can be issued according
to the Share Option Scheme was 56,022,213 shares, which is
equivalent to 10% of the issued capital of the Company. The
number of options that may be granted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
shares immediately after the completion of the listing on the Stock
Exchange. Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares that may be
granted to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to the
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or the independent non-executive Directors or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)), or the
total number of shares that may be granted under the options to
the substantial shareholders of the Company or the independent
non-executive Directors or any of their respective associates
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company
from time to time. There is no minimum period that the options
must be held before they become exercisable, and the options
granted shall be exercised within the period decided by the Board;
however no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have
been granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (c) nominal value of the share. Each grantee
shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the option is
granted. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date
it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years
from that date.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Details of material related party transactions are set out in Note

34 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

Tenancy agreement entered into with Mr. Wang lJia
Jun (“Mr. Wang”)

On 17 March 2022, Grand Motion Investments Limited* FESf
KREAMRAT (“Grand Motion”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a car rental agreement (“Rental
Agreement”) with Mr. Wang which for rental of motor car. The
term of the lease is from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 with a
rental amount of HK$15,000 per month for the motor car and is

renewable upon the signing of a new rental agreement.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, under the annual cap,
and the total rental charge paid, the Group's total transaction
amount with Mr. Wang contemplated under Rental Agreement
was HK$180,000.

. English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only.
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Report of the Directors
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Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions required
to be disclosed as non-exempt connected transactions or non-
exempt continuing connected transactions in accordance with the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2023. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company, Mr.
Wong Hon Kit, Dr. Liu Yongping and Mr. Ho Man have, for the
purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
continuing connected transactions, for the reporting period, have

been entered into:
(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as applied the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since
its listing on the Stock Exchange, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31
March 2023, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate

Governance Report in this report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and

regulations by the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available
information and the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has sufficient public float as required under Rule 8.08 of

the Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant events requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 March 2023 and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
("AGM") will be held on Friday, 8 September 2023 at 11:00
a.m. at Suite 1801, 18/F., Tower 1, The Gateway, Harbour City,
25 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The register of members
of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 5 September 2023
to Friday, 8 September 2023, both days inclusive, during which

period no transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30

p.m. on Monday, 4 September 2023.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jia Jun

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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il S I N
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 119 to
247 comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BN S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B MRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued PEEFHE &
Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matters
Bt EE BAETENRNAEERRENFE

Impairment assessment on goodwill

A E RS

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

I AT S TSR R M 20U RS I BEIR R M 5232 B 51 B ©

The Group has goodwill of approximately OQur procedures in relation to the management'’s
HK$49,093,000 relating to provision of hemodialysis impairment assessment of goodwill included, but were not
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC  limited to:

as at 31 March 2023. The management performed FHMMEEEHEERETHETHNREFSEERRER :
impairment assessments of the cash generating units
and concluded that no impairment loss on goodwill
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2023. calculation:
AEBMBMR -_SE=F=B=+—HRHEHRRMHND N S . "

R ARRANREEE 2 B RAR49,003,000% o nneSHERARBNES RS

T EEENREELEUETRENGLSHAER> o  Assessing the methodologies used and the

o Engaging our valuation expert to evaluate the
assumption and methodologies used in the

RBE_Z_=F=A=+—HULESFEXEMNEER appropriateness of the key assumptions based on our
R BRI © Knowledge of the relevant industry;

e WREZRMVAEMITENMTGFAERITG AR

The management performs an annual impairment test s
BREHNES MY ;

on the recoverability of the goodwill which is subjective

in nature due to judgments having to be made of e Evaluation of management Independent valuer’s
future performance. competence, capabilities and objectively;
EEEHHEZAKREMETEERENS  EPE o @ FSHEEEBIGEANBSE EHRTEY
RERKRBIEHZHAEMEAEREH -

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions

The valuation of goodwill performed by an based on our knowledge of business and industry;
independent professional external valuer based on the and

value in use calculation. The valuation requires the RIER YRR TENAS SREREENS
application of significant judgement and estimation B R

by the management in determining the appropriate

valuation methodology to be used, use of subjective Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and

assumptions and various unobservable inputs. The relevance of the input data used.

valuation is sensitive to underlying assumptions applied e WGBS A SIS ERE M R BRI o

by the valuer such as pre-tax discount rates and growth

rate used and cash flow projection which can have a

significant impact to the valuation. ) . )

B S AT R GEANERERE impairment assessment on goodwill were supported by
: SE o AREASEERNE R N available evidence.

[g;;iﬁ;\‘;g@gigﬁzg%;g;ggﬁ 2 FIBB % 7170 B (A5 1 2 SR WA 01~ B

TR 2 B MM Rt RS EH EEMEA A 07 ARPRNERS

FRZAHKYE AN EEEELEEARCEZRR

A IRERFTAZEREUKRIAE RETER -

We found that the management’s judgment, estimates,
assumptions and methodologies made in respect of the

REREZEERAE 144
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matters

MBEER

PEEFHE &

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

EAETEARMARIEMRENRR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B S Bl ERETE

Refer to Note 5(b) and Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to

the consolidated financial statements.

AR S I B IR RN E5(0) R 22U RAT SIS IR AR M 32 B 5 ©

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$52,454,000 and
allowance for credit losses of trade receivables of
approximately HK$10,344,000. Provision is made for
lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables.
RIZEZ=F=B=+—H> B£ENEZERKR
IHAREEM #352,454,0008 5 MEBZEWREZEE
BB #E N 210,344,000 70 o B HE T 7L B 5 FE W
HNEHATEHAE ER51E1EH
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Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
allowance for credit losses of trade receivables included,
but were not limited to:

MEEEHEZRWREBEZEEHEREFETGLMS > Hif
ZREFEFEERRER

o Understanding the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures
on periodic review of aged receivables and
assessment on expected credit losses allowance of
receivables;

e HREEEWNTHNEEEERER GEHENTHE
% 280 HA FE R TR I 5T FE R IR TR ER IS B S 1R 1 1
NERF ;

o Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
profile of trade receivables by checking to the
underlying sales invoices;

s FERTHMHEZER UHEAFXNAAEZEIK
BRFRAREC 2 ZEREME ;

o Testing on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement
of trade receivables against bank receipts; and

o s n N RIBTWIRAH B 5 BRI 4
HEMNEMBER &



KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matters

Bt EE

Independent Auditors’ Report
B MRS

PEEFHE &

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BAETEABFNAEEMREN SR

Management applied judgement in assessing
the expected credit losses. Receivables relating
to customers with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
nature of the customer, its geographical location and
its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the receivables. The expected credit loss rates
are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

EREETIARAEEEERERAE -AREMET
HFHRENRELAREST KERKRENE R BKRE
ERUFGERERFE S RETRAME HEMEBEUE
REREEER  TEBRHGRERRRERNAZEERAR
BEOHE TiRE T AR GERREEEE
TRERAFEREEBEERNSBRRENIREAE A
HEEERXNDREELFEHRHEEREE  1EH
BURMERRAEEER AT ETRFHEER
MIBENHNEREERR -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade receivables and the estimation and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses
allowance of the trade receivables.
BMUNERZEEZRBNRENEEREEZEES
P& WRR TR 2 TR HA (5 & 15 18 8 5 P T B9 (il 51 B2 ) i o
RIS

o Obtaining management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables.
We corroborated and validated management’s
assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern, correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources including the
relevant public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and market
research regarding the relevant forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors used in
management’s assessment.

e NI EEEHRWUNRIERAEEHBEEGERNT G
BHERBETFEMER - EBERL BN KRB IE
RIFENEE (BREERAT A NMBARRAER A RMEE
RER) URERBAEEENTIBMAR B LR
EEEENA G ANEEEIGPRNEREER

2EER

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation
and judgement made by management in respect of the
expected credit losses allowance and the collectability of
receivables were supported by the available evidence.
ERbtEE BMEREEEMERHRERRAGESE
BER AW EM RISt R A BT R AT SRR e
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

114 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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ERFABHMER  TIBEREP TEAME
HMESRREMBRRAKMAEEFBESD
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- continued

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditors’ Report
B MRS

ESRBERZETMRSMBR
RAFREHNRE-&

ARREEMBHREF EFETTME 85
ERFEEENEN LEBERBR I KREA
HECEEMNEE UKERFEEER
S ER RFEFARR EEEFENF
ISR R EEMBRNERSE-

BEZZEGAREEE SEENMBERS
iz

RHAMMABA RSMBEBRRAK
EHRE

HANER REHREMBRAEERS
FEARRFHAERMERNEARHRBRA
RS EfAE THAGREERMAERNZH
BIERE o AR EEMERRRIELH > BRIE S
ARENEEMBR - KAFTUEKREH
AEREFREMALEAKERE EEREE

A

=

GEFRERSKTHMFRE  EFREFRERR
(BERBHER)ETHES  EX —EKH
552 R 2t 77 7% B 48 A 3% IR o #H SRR 2t AT LA FH ER
SFREE RSB MRAERACMERNE
MERAEFEFAMBRECAEKRBER
B BHRRFAFHOEERE AR HE
SRR AT ARIFE K o
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

116 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Independent Auditors’ Report
B MRS

REMMEB GESMBHRRAXK
ENEE-E

HEFRAKALE G ERNBE N
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguard applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditors’ report is Tien Sun Kit, Jack.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tien Sun Kit, Jack
Practising Certificate Number: P07364
Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

rE A RHEMEE R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

2023 2022
—g”= =
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt 5 FHAT FET
Revenue U =5 8 173,702 154,823
Cost of sales $HE B 4s (116,766) (100,589)
Gross profit EH 56,936 54,234
Other revenue H itz 9 153 50
Other loss HthEs18 10 (733) =
Reversal of/(allowance for) expected B 5 R EMEWIE 2 FaHA
credit losses on trade and other E8EERL
receivables, net () - B%8 5(b) 7,499 (3,187)
Impairment loss on goodwill EmERERIE 20 - (46,630)
Selling and distribution expenses HEKRDHER (34,798) (29,600)
Administrative expenses THREX (24,584) (22,250)
Profit/(loss) from operations BEEREERN  (B58) 11 4,473 (47,383)
Finance costs MEER 12 (2,018) (1,308)
Profit/(loss) before taxation PR AnEFR (A518) 2,455 (48,691)
Taxation RIE 15 (517) (2,246)
Profit/(loss) for the year BEERF 7 (EF8) 1,938 (50,937)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FEEHRHMZ2E BEX)
income for the year Yz
Item that may be reclassified HREBOGEEMTEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BEmzEEH
Exchange differences on translating of B EBINSEETEZ
foreign operations [EREXE (9,812) 7,872
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FEEHRHMZ2E BEX)
income for the year 1= (9,812) 7,872
Total comprehensive expense FEEZEMZAEE
for the year (7,874) (43,065)

REREZRERAR 4 19
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

e REM2ET SR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E°C
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5% FERT FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year WUTFALTEWS
attributable to: EEEFN A (E58) :
Owners of the Company KABHEEA 1,820 (50,999)
Non-controlling interests JEIER S 118 62
1,938 (50,937)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ UTFTALEEEFEE
income for the year 2m (FR) AL
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBEE A (7,987) (43,216)
Non-controlling interests JEER 113 151
(7,874) (43,065)
Earnings/(loss) per share: SRER 7 (518) :
— Basic and diluted —BERKEE
(HK cents per share) (=AW 17 0.32 (9.10)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEM A ZEEEMBRRZ—D -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FERBRRAR

As at 31 March 2023 R=E=-=F=H=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= -
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
M 5% F#ET FET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ER =Y 18 31,679 38,380
Right-of-use assets FREESE 19 15,807 18,871
Goodwill 5k 20 49,093 53,024
Deposit paid for property, plant and MESBER
equipment BEZ T 22 - 90
96,579 110,365
Current assets TENEE
Inventories =78 21 12,631 14,651
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E M EWEIE 22 50,659 61,034
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEBFER 24 9,876 5,768
73,166 81,453
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFEHEZEE 25 3,703 =
76,869 81,453
Current liabilities RENE(E
Trade and other payables B2 REMENRIE 26 23,897 37,730
Lease liabilities HEad 27 2,569 2,732
Borrowings i=p= 28 7,450 —
Amount due to a director BT —%EERIE 29 - 3,500
Tax payables FETFRIE 1,320 1,506
35,236 45,468
Liabilities associated with assets BAEAFEHEZEE
classified as held for sale HERNEE 25 2,838 =
38,074 45,468
Net current assets RENEERE 38,795 35,985
Total assets less current liabilities BEHERTEARE 135,374 146,350
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Lease liabilities HEaf 27 15,147 18,254
Net assets BEEZRE 120,227 128,096
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FERBRRAR

As at 31 March 2023 R=2-=%=H=+—H

2023 2022
—E= —E-C
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bd 5E FHET FHET
Capital and reserves B RE#E

Share capital fi& s 30 28,011 28,011
Reserves #fE 90,186 98,168

Equity attributable to owners of KATER ANEEER
the Company 118,197 126,179
Non-controlling interests JEER D 2,030 1,917
Total equity R 4E%R 120,227 128,096

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2023

and signed on its behalf by:

Wang Jia Jun
Executive Director
F{EE
HITEE

The accompanying notes form an

consolidated financial statements.
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integral part of these
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Wong Hon Kit

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEHEBR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 &

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FE "=

FZRA=1+—HIFE

FATRENES
Non-
Share Share Other  Share option  Contribution Translation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interest Total
K% RipEE Hite  EREHE R EREE HEHE 2HER Nt FERER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#n Fén Fn &7 F#7 F#n T#n F#n T#n Fan Fn
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (c)) (Note (d)) (Note (g))
(Kt(a) () (W) (GE) (Kt(e)
At 1 April 2021 RZE5Z-%£MA-A 28,011 60,299 (2,878) 5671 866,811 4436 19476 (812,517) 169,309 1,766 171,075
(Loss)/profit for the year HEE (FE) /7 - - - - - - - (50,999) (50,999) 62 (50,937)
Other comprehensive income for the year, FEERMAENE TRASH
net of income tax - - - - - 1,783 - - 1,783 89 1872
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FEERENE/ (%) 88
for the year - - - - - 7,783 - (50,999) (43,216) 151 (43,065)
Share-based payment (Note 35) NiRfrARRZ i1 (H335) - - - 8 - - - 8 - 8
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTHTHE - - - - - 1345 (1,345) = = =
Transfer of reserve upon the forfeited of share  RERERKABREE
options - - - (121) - - 121 - - -
At 31 March 2022 WZBZZEZA=1-B 2801 60,299 (2,878) 5,636 866,811 12,219 20,821 (864,740) 126,179 1917 128,096
Profit for the year FEFEF - - - - - - - 1820 1820 118 1938
Other comprehensive expense for the year, BEEEM2ERS > MIHEH
net of income tax - - - - - (9,807) - - (9,807) (5 (9,812)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) ~ HEE2ENKE/ (%) B8
for the year - - - - - (9,807) - 1,820 (7,987) 13 (7.874)
Share-based payment (Note 35) MRIARE (5 (H3k35) - - - 5 - - - - 5 - 5
Transfer to statutory reserve BRELENRE - - - - - - 1402 (1402 - - -
At 31 March 2023 RZ¥-Z%ZR=t+-H 28,011 60,299 (2,878) 5,641 866,811 2,412 2,03 (864,322) 118,197 2,030 120,221
Notes: M E
(a) Other reserve (a) Hith %5
The reserve represents the difference between the Company's ZIEEIEEAATFMBEN B AT BAELR
shares of nominal value of the paid-up capital of subsidiaries Z D EE R AR T 5 E A B UL B [E]
acquired over the Company'’s cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries 1 Bt /B 2 B 2 B s LA B 48 E Uk B8 — RS BT /8
under common control upon the reorganisation and deemed NEIZRHENERE
acquisition of a subsidiary's equity interest.
(b)  Share option reserve (b) ERRERE

The reserve represents the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options grants to eligible persons,
including any full-time and part-time employee, director,
consultant or advisor of the Company and its subsidiaries
recognised in accordance with the share option scheme.

ZHEFBIERREREAZNERINKRTE
BERAL (BEEQERENBAREMAZ
BB ES  EE A AHER) BEER
TEERENERAGHHENQTE

BEREEERERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEHEBR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

Notes: — continued

(c)

(d)

(e)

Contribution reserve

Capitalisation of the outstanding amount of approximately
HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero Enterprises Limited
(“Timely Hero”) to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua
Xia”) on 3 September 2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment
and issue 1 share of US$1 in the share capital of Timely Hero
to Luxuriant Expand Global Investment Limited (“Luxuriant
Expand”), credited as fully paid up, at the direction of Hua
Xia; and (ii) the allotment and issue of a total of 100 shares of
US$1 each in the share capital of Luxuriant Expand, all credited
as fully paid up, to Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of
1 share in Timely Hero at the direction of Hua Xia. Details of
the reorganisation were set out in the paragraph headed “The
Reorganisation” in the section headed “Corporate history,
development and Reorganisation” in the prospectus dated 30
September 2013.

Translation reserve

The reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in Note 3.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the Peoples’
Republic of China (the “PRC”), the subsidiaries of the Company
establishing in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after
taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the
reserve balances has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid up
capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by
the Board of Directors and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FARERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

2023 2022
—E-=HF B HF
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Pt E FHET FHET
Operating activities SEER
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI EEF (B518) 2,455 (48,691)
Adjustments for: HEIER
Interest income F 2 WA 9 (33) (46)
Finance costs =% 12 2,018 1,308
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BERREITE
equipment 18 9,003 9,451
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE 19 2,920 3,292
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected B 5 K E fh fE W zh 18
credit losses on trade and 2RI EEBEEE
other receivables, net (#[E) 5t FEE 5(b) (7,499) 3,187
Impairment loss on goodwill EmERERE 20 - 46,630
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BER
equipment BB E1E 10 733 -
Share-based payment URMBAERZ TR 11 5 86
Operating cash flows before SEEEEHAE
movements in working capital SERENRE 9,602 15,217
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERELD (Em) 498 (5,782)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 K EMthEUFRIE
receivables L (B ) 16,559 (30,215)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B 5 KEEME[HRIE
payables GRiZY) /810 (16,571) 24,946
Cash generated from operations XGRS 10,088 4,166
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid EfMPE R EPRER (703) (2,046)
Net cash generated from operating &8 ¥75FR15
activities REFMHE 9,385 2,120
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SeERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HE_Z_=

F=ZRA=1+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E= —E-C
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
Mg 5 FHAT FHET
Investing activities BEER
Interest received BT S 9 33 46
Purchase of property, BEYE -BERZE
plant and equipment 18 (3,914) (6,979)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME - BERKZEZ
plant and equipment FRiS ™I 37 -
Net cash used in investing activities REEHEFBAREFLE (3.844) (6,933)
Financing activities REER
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAE (3.874) (4,019)
Repayment of amount due BERM—%
to a connected person RAE AN TRIE - (6,200)
Proceed from borrowings REBEZMEMIE 11,564 =
Repayment of borrowings BiEEE (4,992) =
Repayment of amounts due BERNESK
to directors and a shareholder —ZIREHIE (3,500) (4,750)
Net cash used in financing activities FAEEIEFIAREFEHE (802) (14,969)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and WRERREZEEHIEH
cash equivalents ¥Em, GRd) BEE 4,739 (19,782)
Cash and cash equivalents at FMZRERFEEEHEE
the beginning of the year 5,768 25,099
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4 EE [ 2 &8~ 72 (631) 451
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ[ERFEEEHEE
at the end of the year 24 9,876 5,768

The accompanying notes form an

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 E MW R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted Company with limited liabilities
in the Cayman Islands. The Company's immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company is Power King
Investment Development Limited, a company incorporated
in British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"). The Company’s shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the Company is Third
Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands. The head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
located at Suite 1801, 18/F, Tower 1 The Gateway, Harbour
City, 25 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding Company and its
subsidiaries (together with the Company, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business, and hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy service business in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"). The activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as functional
currency of the Company, and the functional currency of
the most of the subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Board of Directors considered that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in HK$ as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
consolidated financial statements are rounded to the nearest
thousands (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first

time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual

periods beginning on 1 April 2022 for the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendment to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 E MW R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) — continued

New and amendment to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current liabilities with covenants?

Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'’

Amendments to HKAS 8  Definition of Accounting Estimates'
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction’

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Going concern assessment

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on

the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration of given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 E MW R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2

Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EERAEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

132 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interest
(if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The acquired processes are considered substantive if they
are critical to the ability to continue producing outputs,
including an organised workforce with the necessary skills,
knowledge, or experience to perform the related processes
or they significantly contribute to the ability to continue
producing outputs and are considered unique or scarce or
cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay

in the ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is
on or after 1 April 2022, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset
and a liability in the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) except for transactions and events within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, in which the
Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of
the Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination. Contingent assets are

not recognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Business combinations - continued

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and

the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of

the lease when compared with market terms.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Business combinations - continued

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Business combinations - continued

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised

in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had

disposed directly of the previously held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts

recognised at that date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at

cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (“CGUs")
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the
amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of
and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs) retained.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate
sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal
group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the

date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant

subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for financial
assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 which continue to be
measured in accordance with the accounting policies as set

out in respective sections.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress as described below).
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying mount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Construction in progress in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for

their intended use.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Property, plant and equipment - continued
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 20%
Medicine equipment 20%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the assets.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal and retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to

which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the

relevant CGU or group of CGUs.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets — continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets — continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI") if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to

which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued
Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit impaired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivable and deposits) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Impairment of financial assets — continued
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk — continued
o an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EERAEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

(iii)

154

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into

account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets— continued

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

SAMBRRENBEREA
B —

EXGHHBER-&

EMIA-&

MBEE-&

HMEBEEERME—&

(i) HREERENMBEE &

(0 BRANERALREEGR

AMBRBEABANEEXS
WRE MRERARTE
RARETFEEEBNESE

(d) BERAEBAITEKRENET
Hth#EHE ; =

() HRMBERBBCEMBFTEE
ZEBHIEHK

(iv) HEEERER
HEEHEBETRXZHABARE
MR EEERWO A EE > Al
REHLEETEEHAEEAR
ERF AEBREMBEMBEE-
TERBEZREERE BMEN
BEENAURBELAEBRNKER
P B 1 58 1 1T o MER AR PR AR LEFE
REH - EAERETHREIGR
B o

BEREEERERAR
= 2022/23 gi& 155
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks
of default occurring as the weights. The Group uses
a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL — continued
Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables and other receivables and deposits where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

FEMBREREREEREKX
BEtEE—-&

EAXEHBER-&
TMTA-4&
MBEE-—&
MEEERE—E

(v)

REAEEEENERER &
ETESRERENZHESRE
BEERDEFRERE R KA
MEBENSHEBEEREN  &E
RRERSH-

P BRST (6T S > A% M2 53 426
HRIU T :

o BHAIR

e BHEANME -RERITE,
)4

o IMEBEEAR WH) -

WETEEEEEHE > U
REANRDEBIEBLUEE
R 451 o

MEBMABRMBEENRIKREE
AE REMBEERSEERE
RUBRSN > TAEZIBER T # B WA
DRMBEENBIHMAE -

FERZERAEAHAEMIAZ
FREEMRESRESMAEEMI
AZRERZHHR EEZEK
BRERAEMERRERZEER
EREEIREDERRELS) -

BEREEERERAR
= 2022/23 gi& 157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

s E MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

158

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity — continued

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured of

amortised cost using effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
borrowings and lease liabilities) are subsequently measured

at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. Cost necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as

the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

SAMBRRENBEREA
B —

EXGHHBER-&

EREH W
RIBEBMEREERE 1558 AEER
(XE) THREBHNEER BINEARER
WEEEMNE RIIREE R MEH#) &2
% T & P By U o

BHEEE—HEARERIRS (H—
HERFARE) H—FR KBRS
FE S m AR TS

575 & bU TS B o — TR > B 4 5 AR B
BRI RS MUK A RIS BB 52 2 B (T 4R 50
B4 BT 2 3 R 1 R T B RS P B3 -

s ERPAEEEFRER IR
ERTEBRRBOPRMHNFE ;

e FEEMNENAIEREAZRR
FEBRBOREZEFHNEE ; 5

s FEENBEYNXRAEHAEERR
FERRAZNEE MEAKEEAR
FATEURESERNE D
TRIE

BRI WamRERESHEEmIARTE
12 01 1 O s FE] R B 50 o

BESEZRERAR 161
2022/23 53R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

s E MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

162

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Revenue from contracts with customers

- continued

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

The wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutics and related
products

Revenue from the wholesale and distribution of
pharmaceutical and related products is recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being at the point
the products are delivered to the customer and the customer
has accepted the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for

acceptance have been satisfied.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Revenue from contracts with customers

- continued

The wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutics and related
products — continued

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and value

added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and the customers accept the products, as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Provision of hemodialysis treatment and consultancy services
Revenue from the provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services which are recognised at a point in time

when the services are rendered.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Employee benefits — continued
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the

benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion

in the cost of an asset.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Share options granted

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair

value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is

expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Taxation - continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary
differences arising from subsequent revision to the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Foreign currencies — continued

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other revenue”.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Related parties

A person or an entity is related to the Group if:

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Related parties - continued

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: — continued

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 E MW R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated

non-lease components as a single lease component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EERAEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies — continued
Leases — continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of carpark and office that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 E MW R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Leases — continued

The Group as a lessee - continued

Right-of-use assets — continued

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-

use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments includes:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EERAEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Leases — continued
The Group as a lessee - continued
Lease liabilities — continued
o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial

discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 E MW R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Leases — continued

The Group as a lessee - continued

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at

the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains one or more additional lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component. The associated non-
lease components are included in the respective lease

components.
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180

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial information, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group'’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainties at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Estimated impairment of property, plant and

equipment, right-of use assets and goodwill
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation, if
any.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

182

(a)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of use assets and goodwill

- continued

The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the CGU (or a group of CGUs) and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
or change in facts and circumstances which results
in downward revision of future cash flows or upward
revision of discount rate, a material impairment loss
or further impairment loss may arise. For impairment
assessment, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the recoverable amounts.
Furthermore, the cash flows projections, growth rate
and discount rate are subject to greater uncertainties
due to uncertainty on how the COVID-19 pandemic
and volatility in financial markets may progress and
evolve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of use assets and goodwill

- continued

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
goodwill subjected to impairment assessment were of
approximately HK$31,679,000, HK$15,807,000 and
HK$49,093,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss
of approximately HK$863,773,000) respectively (2022:
HK$38,380,000, HK$18,871,000 and HK$53,024,000
(net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$870,067,000)). Details of the impairment testing of
non-financial assets including goodwill are disclosed in
Note 20.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
other financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets at amortised
cost are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Detail of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 5(b).

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade and other receivables are set out in Note
5(b) and Note 22.
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5.

184

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

5.

EMTA
(a) E=RTRAIERN

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#Ex FHET
Financial assets MEEE
Amortised cost 55 pR 245 57,948 64,359
Financial liabilities IEaE
Amortised cost HEH R A 49,063 62,216

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other payables, borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and effective

manner.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23

(b) MAFEBEREBRRBE

FEENTETHIABGEES
REMEBURE - RERREEE
HE -BZRAEMEBORE-EE
RBERE -ZETHMIANFE
ERERMMEPIRE - BREFT R
TEMEMzEARSELSRR (8
R R ERER) 58 RBER
RBETRER - BEZFRARZE
REANM T -FEFEEBEER
BEEZLAR UWRARKRRNAEXR
WEIEE Z 51



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 E MW R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. *MTA-&
(b) HERBEEEERKE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group's
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and bank balances. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with

its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information about
the Group’s credit risk management, maximum credit
risk exposures and the related impairment assessment,

if applicable, are summarised as below:

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in the PRC or
banks with high credit ratings assigned assigned by
international credit agencies and the Group has limited

exposure to any single financial institution.

As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances by
reference to the average loss rate for respective credit
rating grades published by international credit-rating
agencies and concluded that the expected credit loss is

insignificant.
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5.

186

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Other receivables and deposits

In respect of the deposits and other receivables, the
credit quality has been individual assessed by general
approach with reference to historical information
about the counterparties and financial position of the
counterparties. The Group recognised the allowance
for expected credit losses by assessing the credit
risk characteristics of deposits and other receivables,
discount rate and the likelihood of recovery and

considering the prevailing economic conditions.

Trade receivables

In respect of the trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach to provide for expected credit
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected credit loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and expected credit
loss. It considers available reasonable and supportive

forwarding-looking information.

Majority of the Group's revenue is received from
individual customers in relation to wholesale and
distribution of pharmaceutical and related products
and provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services. The Group's trade receivables
arise from wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical
and related products and provision of hemodialysis

treatment and consultancy services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. *MTA-&
(b) HERBEEEERKE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Trade receivables — continued

As at the end of the year, the top five debtors
accounted for approximately 58% (2022: 71%) of
the Group’s trade receivables balance. In view of the
history of business dealings with the debtors and
the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them, management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
receivable balance due from these debtors saved for
the debtor related to the impaired trade receivables

disclosed in the below.

Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and

whether there are any disputes with the debtors.

Provision matrix — debtors” ageing

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to its wholesale and
distribution of pharmaceutical and related products
business and provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services business because these customers
consist of customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which
are assessed on a collective basis by using provision
matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) as at 31
March 2023 and 2022.

S8 % B i B 5T 1h — 48

ES BRI A&

REXR AREBALGTEERE
2 BB RIR R ERA958% (Z T -
Fi171%) BERAZFR/HAN
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MENWEGEERY > EEEMRE
FEHRRZEFEFANEHRK
O EWREBEGRES I EE KR
FERE ETXKELBRESR
7 EWRIRE R AR AR

EEERBEEH ANBEMLRE
HoBAER MBENIKRERH
ARBEEEMUG  EHIEES
B H At & W R IR BY R U B 72 2 o

15 15 7B [ — B 7 TR AR B
ERAEREERBREE -9
7 £ [ i AR FE Wk TE PR B 5T {4 BR
ERREREMRORZEN D HE
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued

Provision matrix — debtors” ageing — continued

5. SRMTA-4&
(b) HERAKETEAERKE &

S8 % B i B 5T 1h — 48

B EIEE — B RAR b — &

Gross

Average carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TIRSHEE HERMEE ESiE A
% HK$'000 HK$°000
F#ET F#ET

At 31 March 2023 Ho_F_-=f

=A=+—H
Current (not past due) BNHA (R#EHA) 5.6 31,697 1,775
1 to 90 days past due AHA1ZEIOR 6.0 10,063 605
91 to 180 days past due #BHI91E 180K 33.7 2,929 986
Over 180 days past due  ZIHAFBIE180K 90.0 7,765 6,978
52,454 10,344
Gross
Average carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
THEEIER HERREE BiaE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 31 March 2022 R TEFE— T
=A=+—H

Current (not past due) BIHEA (RiEHA) 5.7 30,163 1,728
1 to 90 days past due AHA1ZEIOR 6.3 16,575 1,046
91 to 180 days past due #HI91ZE 180K 34.7 7,513 2,609
Over 180 days past due  ZEAiE#E 180K 100.0 8,446 8,446
62,697 13,829
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Provision matrix — debtors” ageing — continued

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a

repayment plan with the Group.

Allowance for expected credit losses on trade
receivables are presented as net impairment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the

same line item.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
reversed loss allowance for expected credit loss on
trade receivables of approximately HK$2,463,000
(2022: provision of loss allowance of approximately
HK$3,994,000), based on the provision matrix.

EMIAR-&
(b) MBEBEEEERBE—E

& B KRR ET S8

I — [ s AR e — A
Lt BEERDERBWRIERS
AEREHRNBRIAGZIELE
MERETHES TRRBHMHE
% pY A 55 55 70 B B] 15 B9 Al BE 1
BERMFHAZ IR EERE
HAtR 5 > B AR A BRI IE FE TR IR RY
HEAEHNEEMN-

BZRWRERSERBAREER
O] RS i EE - SIETRAA SR W EIRY S
REEEHPERE BHEARRRELX
ST EREE -

BERERREBEZRBAEEHEER
BREBEZMNAETRRERSE
FEE - HRWE Z A EME =5
REEEE AR

RBEE_E_=%=A=+—
BLEEE AEEREEEER
MESERUREBEBZEHGEES
EE ORI H 492,463,000 7T
(ZEZ—F HREEEEY
3,994,000 7T) °
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment
- continued
Internal credit risk grading categories
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Stage 1 Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Written-off There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of

recovery

190 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

5. *MITA-&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERKEREEEREE &
policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE RS ET L — &
- continued
Maximum exposure and year-end staging RS AR R FREE
The tables below show the credit quality and the TRIITERFTEBZEERE
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the (B JF & 50 4 78 (3 K B8 5b B 245 3%
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past ZHAAERZHEHMEN > T
due information unless other information is available BEEZEERBHRER) 2EE8H
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging ZERFAZHNREEERBRUKR
classification as at 31 March 2023 and 2022. RIE_=Fk_F__F=H
=t+—HZEREEDEE
12-month
ECLs
1288 Lifetime ECLs
EMEEER 2HEBEEER
Stage 2 Stage 3
(non-credit (credit Simplified Allowance Average
Stage 1 impaired) impaired) approach Total ECL loss rate
[-29) K3 EltEE
&1 (BEERE (E&HE L& @ BiRiE THBHRE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 %
TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 31 March 2023 R-BZZ£=A=+-A
Trade receivables BREKTE - - - 52,454 52,454 10,344 19.7
Other receivables and deposits EftEUMTEREE 6,764 - - - 6,764 802 19
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEEE 9,876 - - - 9,876 - -
16,640 - - 52,454 69,094 11,146
12-month
ECLs
12(8R Lifetime ECLs
BHEEER 2BHEERR
Stage 2 Stage 3
(non-credit (credit Simplified Allowance Average
Stage 1 impaired) impaired) approach Total ECL |oss rate
129) BE3 BHEE
K1 (BEERE) (EEHME) & &t BRER THERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 %
TEx THT THw FEx TA® FEx
At 31 March 2022 RZE-ZF=A=1-H
Trade receivables BARKHE - - - 62,697 62,697 13,829 2.1
Other receivables and deposits AT EREE 2,483 13,576 - - 16,019 6,29 393
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEER 5,768 - - - 5,768 = =
8211 13,576 = 62,697 84,484 20,125
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5.

192

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables

and other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31

March 2023 and 2022 reconcile to the opening loss

allowances as follows:

5.

EMIA-&
(b) MBEEREEEERBE—E

S8 % B i B 5T 1h — 48

RIE_=FK_FTE__

F=A8

Z+—BHEBHEATHEZES
RWRIER MM HEENRR
GHEBEREBIBEERZHIR

W
Other
receivables
Other and deposits
Trade receivables (Lifetime ECL
receivables and deposits non-credit
(Lifetime ECL) (12-month ECL) impaired) Total
HitfEwE  HtERRER
B3 ElRIE Rigg HE (27N
(HEE  (+-EREM fEaRE-
=851 (50 ) BiEEHE) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FERT TERT FTERT
At 1 April 2021 RZE mA—H 9,835 1,233 5,870 16,938
Loss allowance recognised/  FERHER/ (&) &
(reversed) during the year, 5] B
net 3,994 (1,041) 234 3,187
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZ&#=H=+—H 13,829 192 6,104 20,125
Loss allowance reversed FERECIMEERE T8
during the year, net (2,463) 674 (5,710) (7,499)
Exchange realignment ERAE (1,022) (64) (394) (1,480)
At 31 March 2023 RIBEZ=f=A=+—H 10,344 802 - 11,146
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains the level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flow. The management manages
liquidity risk by monitoring the utilisation of bank
borrowings, adequacy of reserves and banking facilities
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash

flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise
their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment

dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived based
on management’s best estimates at the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration interest rate

curve, if available.

5. *MITA-&

(b)

MERMEERRREE-

HENE & E R
EEERBECRKRONBES
FEREZETHFEEEIRE
UBnTEEEERERERES
MERBTENRERFEEEEE
BKkF-EEBERERBHETAR
WhZABRBREEERAKE
BRIRE N EMEERITERNE
BAER #ERRTHENTRER
e

TREFLRIFBEERIFR > A&
ETEMBERNREGSHOE

B M e R AT ERKEB IR
NRFAMNUYBEERMERER
TRERBERHR-FHZ  ME
REXREERMRORITERSA
RERER FTRIRTESTEET
EEER - HthIFtT EM B R AN
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ZEAFHEFENERFTERER
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HE_Z_=

F=ZRA=1+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. TMTITA-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) HERKEREEEREE &
policies — continued
Liquidity risk — continued mEE R A
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
M#EF BRERH FERRE
BRHE R—%R Be—-f£ MEHE REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#n T#n T#En TEn
At 31 March 2023 RZE-=£=A=+-H
Trade and other payables BAREMERNTE - 23,897 - 23,897 23,897
Lease liabilities HEEME 6.3 3,583 20,180 23,763 17,716
Borrowings R 16.9 8,706 - 8,706 7,450
36,186 20,180 56,366 49,063
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or within Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
MEF RER RERRE
BRA= R—&R BB—%& MBI FREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx
At 31 March 2022 RZE__&£=B=+-H
Trade and other payables BAREMERTE - 37,730 - 37,730 37,730
Amount due to a director Eff—REETE - 3,500 - 3,500 3,500
Lease liabilities HEaE 6.3 3,934 25,310 29,244 20,986
45,164 25,310 70,474 62,216
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk - continued

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amount of these bank loans
amounted to approximately RMB7,546,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,706,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The table below analyses the Group's bank
loans into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

5.

EMIA-&
(b) MBEEREEEERBE—E

mEEERE &
RERBBEEIFF CFRE
RERBRHNBITEREEBEE
BERIFE RBEZ=F=
B=+—H > ZERITERHKRR
WRAELERNR ARIT,546,0007T
(HE 438,706,000 JT) o K&
BAEEMNMBERR EETAHIR
TRAKXAETEELNBERENR
BIRFER c TRIBEHBESHRE
BRI EZ B THIR > BN
EBANEANEBZRITER
BT

Maturity Analysis - Loans with a repayment on demand clause

based on scheduled repayments

MBS - ARERERERE AL REHBERNFTER

Over
1 year
Less than but less then Over  Undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 2 years cash flows amount
DRME BER1FEEDINE BiE2E RBRRERE IREE
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TER T#ERT T#ERT TR
31 March 2023 ZZ-=f=A=+—-H 938 7,126 642 8,706 7,450

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at

the end of the reporting period.

HIZFEF R B 2B AR
SHREEZHMRMGHBER AL
XF#ARMFTEMBRERS
MERTIAZEBERAMES-

BEREEERERAR
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5.

196

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank deposits (Note 24) and bank
borrowings (Note 28). It is the Group’s policy to keep
its bank deposits, and bank borrowings at floating rate
of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate

risk.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the Group’s
variable-rate bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. Floating-rate bank balances have
not been included in the sensitivity analysis as the
management considers that the interest rate would not
fluctuate significantly in the near future and therefore
the financial impact to the Group is not significant. For
variable-rate bank borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amounts outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis points increase or decrease in interest rate is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.

As at 31 March 2023, if the interest rates on the bank
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$37,000.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. *MTA-&
(b) HERBEEEERKE &

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's

functional currency.

The main operations of the Group were in the PRC and
most of the transactions were denominated in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the foreign currency
denominated of commercial transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group has no significant direct exposure
to foreign currencies as most of the commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
a currency as the functional currency of each entity of

the Group.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

B¥ERE
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BENLIFZBERENEERBZE
WIE RIEELEISNERR-

FEBTERFREEXEF AKX
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5.

198

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c) Fair value measurements
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i) The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices

respectively.

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models (e.g.
discounted cash flows analysis using observable

and/or unobservable inputs).

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term

nature of these financial statements.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, including
lease liabilities and bank borrowings disclosed in notes
27 and 28 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to the owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital and reserves.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

The Group's risk management committee reviews the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review,
the committee considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group has a target
gearing ratio of 10-15% determined as the proportion of net
debt to equity.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

6. BXREMREERE—E
FEENEAREESEES X ERE
BAEE - EBBRHN—BH E8E
EEEARARASEEEERNA
%o A EEBEIEE RS BELEESEB10-
15% » BI3E &2 (B RRHE A9 EL 15l o

RBERRNELER/EERNT :

follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —E-C

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET
Debt (Note (a)) &% (MisE@a)) 25,166 24,486
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEBFER (9.876) (5,768)
Net debt R38R 15,290 18,718
Equity (Note (b)) #E# (FEsE(b)) 118,197 126,179
Gearing ratio BEAMAILER 0.13 0.15

Notes: B E -

(a) Debts represented borrowings, amount due to a director
and lease liabilities, as detailed in notes 28, 29 and 27
respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners
of the Company.

(@) MEXEEGE - BT REFHERAE
EaE GRKM 28 29%27Fr 9 Bl 5%
i) o

(b) REEEXQABEAABLNAEER
7 R f o
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT 7. EESE

Information reported internally to the chief operating MEESERRE (EEEERESE))
decision maker (“CODM") for the purpose of resource ABERUEFE RSP ATZDER
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses HZzEMN BEERFARNRREEZE
on types of goods or services delivered or provided. mERFRE AEEMABAMESEE
The Group organised into two operating divisions: (a) 78 B E 2z (a) 2 it 3 K 53 85
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business, and (b) E 5% K(b) MK EMNTIA R KBRS %
hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service business in BoRENHENAERZERESEER
the PRC. These divisions are the basis on which the Group ZERo

reports its segment information.

Segment revenue and results DEWERES

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and WFhmEERAKREDB|HNER Y
results by the operating and reportable segment. R B o

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_ZT_=F=H=+—HLEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

distribution service
business business Consolidated
% EW
BoitER AR RGN
TEHET IRFEET =a
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET F#E5T
Segment revenue from external REINBEE 2948
customers & 52,278 121,424 173,702
Segment results Pk ES (1,130) 15,450 14,320
Unallocated corporate income RO EZBHEKA K
and expenses, net T BEE (9,847)
Profit from operations EIEER A 4,473
Finance costs HEER (2,018)
Profit before taxation PRI AT F 2,455
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_—E_=F=B=+—HILFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7.

Segment revenue and results — continued
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

SESE-E
DHEBNERESE—E
BE_E__H=BA=+—HLEE

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

distribution service
business business Consolidated
MR BN
BRIt ER BE RS
DIHET RFE T Ta
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Segment revenue from external ZREIEPEE 2 D48
customers & 51,183 103,640 154,823
Segment results DEEEE 7 (38,014) (38,007)
Unallocated corporate income RO A2 WA K
and expenses, net T BEE (9,376)
Loss from operations EEXEFEIR (47,383)
Finance costs MEER (1,308)
Loss before taxation PRI AIES 18 (48,691)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no inter-

segment sales in both years.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
Segment result represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, finance
costs and certain other income. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

EXBRENDEREDREINEER
Wiz o 7S W 1B SF BE Mt S D SR RSN & o

AREREEDENGHHRRALE
ENEtBRER - DREERRDE
PREEERBFE  FEESERRITHRE
B-MBERRETHMUALLTHH
ETETEEERREUBMFERKEER
REFEB ST A

BEREEERERAR
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FE—F-H-+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities
For the year ended 31 March 2023

7. EERE-E
NERERARE

BE_ES_="F=-A=1+—HLEE

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and

wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Consolidated
m&ER
BaitER BB RGN
PEER BR 75 % #5 L=
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
F#ET F#ET F#ET
Consolidated statement of 4 &K AER
financial position
Assets B5E
Segment assets DEEE 21,050 147,998 169,048
Unallocated corporate assets RO ZEEEE 4,400
Consolidated total assets FEEEME 173,448
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities DEEE 7,309 41,196 48,505
Unallocated corporate liabilities KOz EXEE 4,716
Consolidated total liabilities FEBEMREE 53,221

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities — continued
For the year ended 31 March 2022

7. EERE-E

NEEEREE-&

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_—E_=F=B=+—HILFE

BE_E__H=BA=+—HLEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

distribution service
business business Consolidated
R B
Zm R BE RS
DIHETE iFEEESES RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Consolidated statement of 4 &BHFEIKRRER
financial position
Assets 5E
Segment assets DEEE 23,701 165,634 189,335
Unallocated corporate assets RO ZBEEE 2,483
Consolidated total assets EEBEEME 191,818
Liabilities 1=K
Segment liabilities DEER 8,039 49,018 57,057
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO zEXEE 6,665
Consolidated total liabilities GEaEMaEE

63,722

BEREEERERAR
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued
Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal areas—pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC and

administrative activities operate in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue is solely generated from external

customers in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

EENE-&

ERN
AEENWETEAREE-—ETEE
T it 3 ) S T R I BT 5
REARBEBRESSEBEEY
FEo

FEBMZREEMRENFEZIIEE
Eo

UTRBEEMBEMED T ZIFRBE
EZREEDH

2023 2022
—F_-= —E°C
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TFHET
Hong Kong 5% 2,842 1,428
Mainland China [ A3t 93,737 108,937
96,579 110,365
Information about major customers EREEERZEH

Revenue from a major customer who contributed over 10%

of the Group’s total revenue is as follow:

REGAEHBWZI0%UALEZEER
BT

2023 2022
—E”= —E”C
HK$'000 HK$°000
FERT TET
Customer A* BERA* 18,553 17,191
* Revenue from segment of pharmaceutical wholesale and * oF B B L HE B D S RS D HER R RS o

distribution business.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_—E_=F=B=+—HILFE

EENE-&
HthyEEERAR
BE_S-_=F=A=+—-HLEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

distribution service
business business Unallocated Consolidated
m&ER
BRltER AEREH
DIHER PR %R xAE Foa-]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT TART TERT TART
Capital expenditure (Note) BARRY () 1,176 4,115 2,822 8,113
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1¥BERRENE
equipment 283 8,321 399 9,003
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEERE 436 1,476 1,008 2,920
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected B 5 R E thEKIE
credit losses on trade and other Z2EHBEEBE
receivables, net (M) /i 34 1,995 (9,508) 14 (7,499)
Finance costs MEER 37 1,962 19 2,018
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BHE_Z__F=A=+—HLEE
Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Unallocated Consolidated
Jube: 54
BEoHtER AR R EH
NIHEH e xR o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET AR TET
Capital expenditure (Note) BEARRER (M) 610 7,434 9 8,053
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #)¥BERRENE
equipment 266 8,791 394 9,451
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 419 1,858 1,015 3,292
Provision of allowance for expected ~— B 5 REMEKZHIEZ
credit losses on trade and other BHEEEERES
receivables, net bt 173 3,014 = 3,187
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 20) &R ERE (i320) = 46,630 — 46,630
Finance costs HHER 40 1,199 69 1,308

Note:

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets during both years.

BEE :

BEXRARBERMEFERNREZYE K
BRBREUREREEE-

BEREEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued 7. EERE-E&
Other segment assets and liabilities - continued HittpSEEERGE &

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MEESBRRERDESEBEIRM
allocating resources between segments: :

jil[[3

BRI RZEEEEIN FRBEEE

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other

than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated HARRERRED B - RKDERZE
corporate assets mainly include office equipment, *EEFTZAEFREEBATZ
certain right-of-use asset and cash and cash equivalent MAREBE - ETHERAEEEUARIR
of the central administration companies and certain EhAEEEEERETEHER
deposits and other receivables. Goodwill is allocated to HMEWRIE - PEEERIRE D HE
reportable segments as described in Note 20. Z B R EE20%8 4tk 0

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other e KREGNESEHRE - ETHEAERR
than, amount due to directors, certain lease liabilities ETEMEMRERETITHE
and certain other payables and accrual expenses of BAzREsHZIN FREafEE s
certain administrative costs. ErRENE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_—E_=F=B=+—HILFE

REVENUE 8. U=
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: FR>AEBRRFEAINAOT :
2023 2022
—g-= T E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHAT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers RR—FF R ERE A
recognised at a point in time: =r 0l G
Wholesale and distribution of BEORAERERMERDHE
pharmaceutical and related products 52,278 51,183
Provision of hemodialysis treatment and R MR EN R R KA AR
consultancy services 121,424 103,640
173,702 154,823
All revenue contracts are for one year or less. As permitted FRrERZSNIREAE—FHUT K
by practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price ERMBRESENFISHKNAIITETS
allocated to unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. AR B ESRERBITEAN

RZEEe

BEREEERERAR
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9.

10.
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OTHER REVENUE 9. Hfthigzs
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Interest income A EUWA 33 46
Government subsidies (Note) BT #6Bh (FFsE) 120 =
Sundry income HIEIWA - 4
153 50

Note: B 5k -

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group successfully
applied for funding support from the Employment Support Scheme
set up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, the purpose of which is to provide financial support to
enterprises and to retain their employees who would otherwise
be made redundant. Under the terms of the Employment Support
Scheme, the Group is required not to make redundancies during the
subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to its
employees. During the year ended 31 March 2022, no such funding
support was received.

RBE_Z_=ZF=A=+—HLEFE &
EEMNAFHERFNITHRERNRILZ
MRELZEI SR B 2B ENEREER
HEBZER UREAREEREMNES 1R
BIRME SRR AEEEMBART
BHBE MRAAEMRERAR M EESH
T RBE_FT__F=-RA=+—HLFE"
BEKEEREEX R

OTHER LOSS 10. H{thE518
2023 2022
—g-= —EZC
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TFETT
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERRHBEZEE
plant and equipment 733 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_—E_=F=B=+—HILFE

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS 1. BEXEBEN  (5H)
The Group's profit/(loss) for the year has been arrived at after FERo AEBZER (B58) TH &M
charging: THEB®BER
2023 2022
—FI=F | ZTBIH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments ET &R (BFEEEME

(Note 13)): (M$3£13)) :

Salaries and allowances <t o PG 18,885 18,012

Retirement scheme contributions BRIRE ST EIHR 1,331 1,149

Share-based payment (Note 35) R AERZ R (FizE35) 5 86

20,221 19,247
Depreciation of property, plant and MR E R EREHEITE (M45E18)

equipment (Note 18) 9,003 9,451
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE (fHsE19)

(Note 19) 2,920 3,292
Auditors’ remuneration B EM A &

— audit services —BIZRT 736 757
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses RARZZEERAE 114,860 94,002
Expenses relating to short-term leases BIGHATH E AR 2B (MfEE19)

(Note 19) 383 358

BEREEERERAR
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12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BBER
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FAET

Interest on: LTFEEZFE

— Borrowings —fEE 893 =
— Lease liabilities —fHE&aE 1,125 1,308
2,018 1,308

13. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS
Pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the aggregate amounts of emoluments paid by
the companies now comprising the Group to the directors of

the Company during the reporting period are as follows:

13. EEHMN
RiE EHRAIREBATER > BAM
AEETZEATRBEPHEAFA
AREEZFMEENT :

2023 2022
—ZE-= —_E-

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Fees ik 572 415
Other emoluments: HE :

— Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind — e REREYH ® 1,697 1,547

— Retirement scheme contributions —RIREH B R 18 29

Total a5t 2,287 1,991
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_—E_=F=B=+—HILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company

13. EFHM -8B

"
FABBEENBRSHBEZHMF B

during the reporting period are as follows: e <
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contribution Total
Fid 2R
g BNHE Bk BN b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER THERT
For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE-BC=
ZBA=+-RALEE
Executive directors: HITEE .
Mr. Wang Jia Jun FHBEAE - 1,697 18 1,715
Non-executive director: HHTEE.
Dr. Xiao Zhixin (Note (b)) ARERE (Hz0) 143 - - 143
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit HEBRE 143 - - 143
Dr. Liu Yongping AzTEL 143 - - 143
Mr. Ho Man (L6 143 - - 143
572 1,697 18 2,281
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contribution Total
e 2MR
& BHE RIRGH R B3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET
For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE-E-ZE
=ZB=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: RITEE
Mr. Wang Jia Jun FEERE - 1,166 18 1,184
Ms. Yung Ka Lai (Note (a)) SEBZT () - 381 11 392
Non-executive director: HHTEE.
Dr. Xiao Zhixin (Note (b)) BRERE (H50) 55 - - 55
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit BERRE 120 - - 120
Dr. Liu Yongping ABTEL 120 - - 120
Mr. Ho Man RE 120 - - 120
415 1,547 29 1,991
BEEERZERARAT 211
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13.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued

Notes:

(@) Ms. Yung Ka Lai resigned as the executive director of the

Company on 15 October 2021.

(b)  Dr. Xiao Zhixin was appointed as non-executive director on 15
October 2021.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, none of
the directors and chief executive officer of the Company

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments have been paid to the directors and chief
executive officer of the Company as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation.

No bonus was paid or receivable by directors or five highest
paid employee after considering the Group’s operational
and financial performance during the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_—E_=F=B=+—HILFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid individuals during the year included
one (2022: one) director and the details of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 13 above. The details of
the emoluments of the remaining four (2022: four) highest
paid individuals who are neither director nor chief executive

officer of the Company are as follows:

. ABEREHES

FRNLLEREHEEEE % (ZF
T R ESF CHEMESFBERNE
XHFF13- R TEE (CT2F: [m4R)
mEHmEE (RFELIFEQABDESTIE
FETHAB) ZHMEFBEUT

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Salaries and other emoluments e REMBE 2,112 2,090
Retirement scheme contributions RONEFETEIHERR 52 47
2,164 2,137

The number of the highest paid employees who are not

WIBAABERMEFM T FLUTE

directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the BzRaiHEEZAZBENT :
following band is as follows:
2023 2022
—¥-= B
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,000 75 4 4

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to senior management
or any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

loss of office.

BE_T_=-"FfrR-_FT-"FZ=AH
=+—HLEFEE - FERLEERASHRE
BEABRENALERSHEEX T
B > LAEA IR S| NN EE A< &2 M s it N 2R 18
HYAZRY > SRR A R A E o
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15.

214

TAXATION 15. #RIB
2023 2022
—E°= -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current tax: ENHERFRIE ©
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EMRFR 517 2,246

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operated.

Provision on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onward to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT"”) CIT provision is made on
the estimated assessable profits of entities within the Group
incorporated in the PRC and is calculated in accordance
with the relevant regulations of the PRC after considering
the available tax benefits from refunds and allowances. The
general PRC CIT rate is 25% during the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022 except for those as discussed below:

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_—E_=F=B=+—HILFE

15. TAXATION - continued

The Ministry of Finance (“MOF”) and State Administration
of Taxation (“SAT”) on 17 January 2019 jointly issued Cai
Shui 2019 No. 13. This clarified that from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021, eligible small enterprises whose
RMB1,000,000 of annual taxable income is eligible for a
75% reduction on a rate of 20% (i.e., effective rate is 5%)
and the income between RMB1,000,000 and RMB3,000,000
is eligible for 50% reduction on a rate of 20% (i.e. effective
rate is 10%). On 14 March 2022, MOF and SAT further
jointly issued Cai Shui 2022 No. 13, which clarified that
from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024, eligible small
enterprises whose income between RMB1,000,000 and
RMB3,000,000 is eligible for 75% reduction on a rate of
20% (i.e. effective rate is 5%).

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated

assessable profits above HK$2 million.

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax, Cayman Islands
and BVI Income Tax has been made, as the Group did not
generate any assessable profits in these jurisdictions during
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

15. *ﬁlﬁ nE

BAEER (TR EB)) REIRRHEER (TH
RBER) R_E—-NLE—HB+tH
Bt S ENSE A FR201958 1358 X1 o & XU
REE_T—NE—B—HEZZ_—
FE+ZHA=+t—H FERMRKAS
AR ¥1,000,000cM S BB
AIE20% MM ERME75% (BIBERE
#5%) RWANF AK¥1,000,0007T
Z AR 3,000,000t & ER/NE B
2> A[E20% MM E R %E50% (BB
MER10%) RZIEZZF=B+M@

B MEBRERRZEERFE—PHSE
ENZSBATR2022E 51398 BAFE R —
EHFE—HFA—HEZZZAEKE+ZA
=+—H WANTFAE1,000,0007T
= AR 3,000,000t & & &/ B B
£ A R20% IR TR R75% (BNE R
EHAB5%) o

REBEEBANESRNVAESRBARG > 5&
MEMEREMNE2,000,000%8 T EF &
18.25% M # RB#7 > miBi82,000,000
BT ZHEANBLLI6.5%MNMEHR - K
HEFESRMBREESNERSRENE
A EER16.5%NH—RERR - H
I A ERERBERN MG ERRERN
B2,000,000/8753%8.25% st EE A FIE
> Mk8iE2,000,0008 T A {4 5t FERR TR
A B3R 16.5% 5T & o

FERLEEMREEFNSR RAEHEER

EBELHEMERREMERF T
HRBE_ST_=ZFKr_FT-__F=8
E+—HLEFEXREBRRZFRDLIER
i 55 B A AR R FEER AR A o
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15. TAXATION - continued 15.
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss
before taxation using the statutory rate for the location in
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expenses at the effective tax rate are as follows:

*ﬁlﬁ nE
ERAATRENE AT PTEMEZ %
EMFAFTBERNBRRABEZAER
AXERERRERATZRNERZZH
BRUIE :

2023 2022
—g”= —EZC
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHAT FET
Profit/(loss) before taxation PrFRETREF (B518) 2,455 (48,691)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before tax, BEREMBRZEIEEEEZ
calculated at the rates applicable to profits EFIBERMR R ERIR AT
in the tax jurisdiction concerned wmH, (F518) E’J%%fﬁlﬁ 1,451 (11,287)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AOREZNRE T E
tax purposes 1,231 14,878
Tax effect of withholding tax on dividend GEDIRBFEINRNRIE T ZE
distribution 652 1,091
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIEDNWRIEBEENREZE 1 60
Effect of the preferential income tax rates BRABANEREEFFSMREDN
for domestic entities e (2,818) (2,496)
Taxation R 517 2,246

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$9,163,000 (2022:
HK$13,441,000) available for offset against future profits
and amount of approximately HK$9,163,000 will fully
expire in 2027. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the HK$9,163,000 (2022: HK$13,441,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. At
the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of a subsidiary for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised was approximately HK$3,186,000 (2022:
approximately HK$4,199,000). No deferred tax liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_—E_=F=B=+—HILFE

16. DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the

17.

payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023
(2022: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per

share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

(a)

(b)

Basic

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
are based on earnings/(loss) per share attributable to
the owners of the Company and the weighted average

16.

17.

R
ERBEZEFAERRTHEHE_S_=
ZA=t+t—BHLEENEARE (T2
ZE ) o

skEH  (HH8
AABEEAEESRESRBEIRT
/ (R518) ThIR ML F B EHE

(a) EZF
FER - SEREXEBHN 7 (EBE) b
RIBEAAREES ANELEREF,
(F518) RIMMEFHBEETZER

number ordinary shares in issue during the year as HESE HBUWT
follows:
Earnings ZF
2023 2022
—E= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TFHET
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ZxA TG AL EEEF]
owners of the Company (E548) 1,820 (50,999)
Number of shares B
2023 2022
—E°= -
Weighted average number of ordinary M#EFHEZETZEREKE
shares in issue 560,222,136 560,222,136
Diluted (b) #%

For the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, the
computation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share does
not include the Company’s outstanding share options
because the effect were anti-dilutive. Therefore, the
diluted earnings/(loss) per share of the Company is the
same as the basic earnings/(loss) per share.

BE_E_=FfRIZZF=
B=+—HBLFE -SR#ERF
/(BB 2t EREARBELE
M ATRBHKRITHEZE
e FHit > R AT ERIBERF]
(F518) SIS REAREF  (FB1B)
GEIE

BEREEERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

218

18. V¥ -BEREHE

Leasehold Office Medicine Motor Construction
improvement equipment equipment vehicle in progress Total
HENERE MAZRME BRERE AE EEIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TET TAR TAT
Cost %3
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—-FMA—H 22,909 13,783 24,573 326 3,597 65,188
Additions RE = 245 4,79 26 2,295 7,360
Disposals HE - - - (150) - (150)
Transfer = 371 - - - 371) =
Exchange realignment ERAE 961 554 649 26 183 2373
At 31 March 2022 RZBZZE=A=1+-H 24,241 14,582 30,016 228 5,704 74,771
Additions RE - 970 1,665 1,674 - 4309
Disposal HE = (1,865) = = = (1,865)
Transfer = 440 - - - (440) =
Exchange realignment ERHE (910) (651) (592) (24) (@21) (2,598)
Reclassified as held for sale ENNBARELE (1,467) (1,062) (6,329) - - (8,858)
At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=E=A=1+-H 22,304 11,974 24,760 1,878 4,843 65,759
Accumulated depreciation 2iHirE
At 1 April 2021 RZEZ-FmE—H 5,251 7,054 13,423 16 - 25,744
Provided for the year FRNEEE 3,737 1510 4,052 152 - 9,451
Eliminated on disposals PR E R - - - (150) - (150)
Exchange realignment ERER 292 311 728 15 - 1,346
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=F=1+—-H 9,280 8,875 18,203 33 - 36,391
Provided for the year ERERRE 3,884 1,135 3872 112 - 9,003
Eliminated on disposals R ERHE - (1,095) - - = (1,095)
Exchange realignment ERAE (706) (642) (1,089) 8) - (2,445)
Reclassified as held for sale ENNAARELE (726) (719) (6,329) = - (7,778)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=B=1+—-H 11,732 71,554 14,657 137 - 34,080
Carrying values IREE
At 31 March 2023 RZE-=£ZR=+-H 10,572 4,420 10,103 1,741 4,843 31,679
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=F=1+—H 14,961 5,707 11,813 195 5,704 38,380

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. EREEE

Leased

Properties

HEME

HK$'000

FHET

At 1 April 2021 A _E_—FMWA—H 20,660
Additions NE 693
Depreciation charged for the year FRINFRITE (3,292)
Exchange realignment BE &2 3R 2 810
At 31 March 2022 RIEZZTHF=HA=+—H 18,871
Additions NE 3,804
Depreciation charged for the year FERORITE (2,920)
Exchange realignment BE R 2R B (1,119)
Reclassified as held for sale ENMOEAFEHE (2,829)
At 31 March 2023 RIEZ=fF=HB=+—H 15,807
2023 2022

—ZET-= -

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Expenses relating to short-term leases B ERMZRAX 383 358
Total cash outflow for leases HEZREMH4EEE 4,257 4,377

Note: B 5E -

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$17,716,000 (2022:
HK$20,986,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$15,807,000 (2022: HK$18,871,000) as at 31
March 2023. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purpose.

RIZE_=FE=RB=+—HRIMEEEEDH
17,716,000 75 (ZZF Z — 4 : 20,986,000
7o) BERAE A E E4915,807,0008 T (=
T4 :18,871,00087T) - BBEBEAFEAE
NEEEENRFRERI HERZ LR
MEMRZE -HEEETTBIEMERIER

BEREEERERAR
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19.

20.

220

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued

Note:— continued

For both years, the Group leases various properties for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms
of 2 to 20 years (2022: 2 to 20 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for staff
quarters. As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term
leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed
above.

19. FRKEE—&

MizE . — 48

RREEE AEBAEEEHAZE
ME-FRINAESHNFEHREES2E20
F(ZEZZF  2F204) - HERER
BEEERRAOSTRBERREG BEE
FAEA B s A el S HE PR B R AE B » 2K
EEERAANNES Y05 E 7 58 & 83
TEHBIHEAR

AEBEEHEITIEIEENEHES
ER-MR_E_=FEK-_TE-__F=H
=t+—H iEHAEEHESHE EMEEN
CHAE BT ERNE A E A S8
Lo

GOODWILL 20. &
2023 2022
—E== B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cost (5%
At 1 April REA—H 923,091 917,617
Exchange realignment BE 52 3R X (10,225) 5,474
At 31 March W=B=+—H 912,866 923,091
Accumulated impairment losses REtiREESE
At 1 April REBE—H 870,067 821,117
Impairment loss recognised during the year 4 A B 2R EEE - 46,630
Exchange realignment bE R EFHEE (6,294) 2,320
At 31 March BR=B=+—H 863,773 870,067
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 March W=B=+—H 49,093 53,024

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

20. GOODWILL - continued

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

The Group tests for impairment of goodwill annually and
in the financial year in which the acquisition takes place, or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might

be impaired.

For the purposes of impairment testing, the carrying value of
the goodwill has been allocated to the CGU which operate
in the provision of hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
services in the PRC by Mingxi County Trading Company
Limited.

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (including allocation of corporate
assets) that generate cash flows together with the related
goodwill are also included in the CGU for the purpose of

impairment assessment.

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation, which is determined by
the directors with reference to the professional valuation
performed by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited,
an independent firm of professional qualified valuers. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period
(2022: 5-year), and the pre-tax discount rate of 11.6%
(2022: 11.9%). The cash flows of this CGU beyond the
5-year period (2022: 5-year) are extrapolated using a zero
terminal growth rate (2022: zero%). This growth rate is
based on a very prudent forecast and does not exceed the

average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations
relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include average gross margin of 39.0% (2022: 46.9%) and
the average net profit margin of 6.7% (2022: 11.8%), such
estimation is based on the CGU's past performance and

management’s expectations for the market development.

20. &4

BEREzZREELEUZRER
it
FEERSERNETRBZMBEE
HEAABEAESHE EANREH
BE A RERER > §ESRE A

MBEASMS  BEZREEE DA
EREREEEZARABDVNHEREH
MRBETABERAARBZREELE

fiLe

BFREAmBEZN EEREREZY
X BERRBREAEEE (BFEEE
BEDEK) - ZREBBEETHAREE
FEN UEETREN

IEREESEEMZAIKESEREER
BEABEALZEE HNHEEKS2E
BUSXSERMGEAR MR BART
fH B BRA B P {E 58 2 (i (B 1T 78 7E o &% 5t
A EERAREEEBSH AFEHM
(ZBZZHF 1F) 2MBEEHEZ
RERERAKRRABEERI1.6% (=
TTTF 011.9%) ETESE R AFH
BMCEIZE . AF) gMNZREESE
BEURETERASKEERE (ZF
TIE IDHERR)HEEIDERENR
iR E oE 1E Y TE R E B B R AR
TEZREAFHERR-

HHEEAEENEMEERRERER
A/ RENGE AR BIETFHERNE
39.0% (ZEZTHF [ 46.9%) RTF19F
FEET7% (CTEZ"F:11.8%) >
BERESDERREEEBEUNBERR
REEBEHTHERBNTERAMERE

BEREEERERAR
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20. GOODWILL - continued

21.

222

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

- continued

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the assessments
result in headroom over the carrying amount of CGU by
HK$7,039,000 and consequently no impairment has been
made.

If the pre-tax discount rate was change to 12.6%, while
other parameters remain constant, the headroom over
the carrying amount of the CGU would be reduced to
approximately HK$2,125,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, due to the delay in
business plan of Huidong Centre and Maoming Centre and
the halt of business cooperation with Xianyou Centre, based
on the assessment of the recoverable amount of CGU of
approximately HK$124,901,000 which the carrying amount
of the CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, impairment
loss on goodwill of approximately HK$46,670,000 was
recognised.

If the pre-tax discount rate was change to 12.90%,
while other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of the CGU would be reduced to approximately
HK$113,453,000 and impairment of goodwill of
approximately HK$57,877,000 would be recognised.

INVENTORIES

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

2 0 ﬁ = nlE

BEHEZHEELEEUZRER
B
RBEE_S-_=ZF=BA=+—HILHF
B tuERARESESBEUNREE
EAFEH7,039,00078 7T » Al LG b %% 1 R
fEo

HIRA BRI EERA12.6%  MEMS
HEFAE2 AREEEEMNIRTR
ARG VD E 492,125,000 7T ©

REBEESE-—_F=B=+—HILEF
B rHRERPOKXRAROHNERES
BERE > U R EBEROHNERSEE
L RENAESESCEMNTRESEY
124,901,000 e a1 {E » IREEE B
B BR B 48 & E 0] Y [B] & %8 > A tE FE ER
2 R (B E5384946,670,00058 7T ©

iR AR E BN A12.90% > MEMS
FRFAE HEEEXE M KREEEE
1R/ ZE49113,453,00058 7t » A G FE SR
IR EA957,877,00048 7T ©

21. 78

RFEMBRRRZELERE !

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#x FHET

Finished goods EC A 12,631 14,651

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. 85 REMEWRIE

2023 2022
—2-= -z
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Non-current assets: ERBEE !
Deposits paid for property, plant and ME-BERZBEN
equipment (Note (a)) #& (MisE@)) - 90
Current assets: MBEE .
Trade receivables B EWHE 52,454 62,697
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses & : B ZEWFHIEZ
on trade receivables TRHAE BB 1EEE (10,344) (13,829)
42,110 48,868
Prepayments FETFRIAE 2,587 2,443
Other receivables and deposits paid HEWRIEREMRE
(Note (b)) (B 5% (b)) 6,764 16,019
51,461 67,330
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 8 : EftEEWRIEZ FEHEE
on other receivables 1R S (802) (6,296)
50,659 61,034

Notes:

As at 31 March 2022, the balance represents deposits paid
for machinery and equipment for provision of hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy services. The deposits were
received during the year ended 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2022, included in the Group’s deposits
paid were the refundable security deposit to Zhuhai
Jinlong Hospital Company Limited* (BkiBNBEERERBEA
&) (the “Owner”), for the operation and management
of the hemodialysis centre in the hospital for a term of
10 years of approximately RMB11,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$13,576,000). On 16 November 2022, the Owner and the
Group entered into a termination agreement and agreed to
terminate the management agreement with immediate effect.
The security deposit was received during the year ended 31
March 2023. For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 13 March 2020 and 16 November
2022.

English translations of official Chinese names are for
identification purpose only.

B 5E :

RIB-_—_H#=A=+—0 &M
BARREIASFAEBERBHAREN
HERREZNZRE - BHEREBEEZ
E_=F=B=+—HIEFEWE-

R-B__H#=B=+—H &x&£EZ
BEffEEEnkENERRERAR
(THEB AL SRAZUREBEFRESLOA
E#11,000,0007t (#8E#13,576,000
BT UEEBEREEZBERNMES
RO BHI0EFE RIEZZ2F+—
Bt+RNB BEEANESEBTILI—H
RIEGB LG ERIEERHE D
EH - REENBE_S_=F=8
=+—BHLEEKRE -BLHE B2
BEAATDHPA S _SE=RB+=
HERZEZZH+—B+BZRffi°
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B RHEMBEWMRE—&

- continued

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical A 22 fn #it 3% e 3 SH R TS MU R IR EE AT A
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis B RBHREERE PR HAARIER
treatment and consultancy service business are mainly on UEEAET BE—RADNNEEZE
credit. Invoices are normally payable from 30 to 90 days Y BHE30E90H (ZE 2% : 30&
(2022: 30 to 90 days) for pharmaceutical wholesale and 90H) (EEmALBERDIHETR) K5E365H
distribution business and 5 to 365 days (2022: 5 to 365 —E "% 5F365H) (MBREMA
days) for hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service BRGEHARTEER) AR REERH
business respectively of issuance of invoices. The ageing B & 5 FEWRIE AR ZERV AR BS D AR AAE -

analysis of the gross amount of trade receivables based on

the invoices date is as follows:

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FHExT

Within 90 days 90H AN 34,050 32,048
91 to 180 days 91&180H 8,186 15,051
181 to 365 days 181E365H 2,740 7,624
Over 365 days #BiE365H 7,478 7,974
52,454 62,697

Details impairment assessment of trade and other receivables B 5 K A FE RN IE K 2 & R B T (5

and deposits are set out in Note 5(b). FEINTES(OR

224 WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

23. B AT Z#1E
A —_E_=F=B=+—H 'AATZ
BB AT BAABRAE) EBW

23. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2023 are as

follows:

Place and date of

T

Incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Percentage of equity, effective
registration ordinary share/ interest and voting power held
Name of subsidiaries and operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
L/ 3Rk BEAR4REER/
WE2R4HE EEMERAM HER FATRAZRE RREERRRE LA TEEH
Direct Indirect
i}
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEICHE| Z3CCE| ZBIZE| Z32C
% % % %
Putian Huihao Medicine Company Limited * The PRC/ Registered capital - - 99.0 99.0 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
_ 11 July 2008 RMB10,000,000 distribution business in the PRC
REEHEFBREERAT" TE/ AfEE RAEETER L ER
“E3)\FtA+-H AE 10,000,000 NHEH
Wuhua Yongke Kidney Hemodialysis Company Limited*" The PRC/ Registered capital - - 99.0 99.0 Hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
28 November 2016 RMB3,000,000 service business in the‘PRC
RERTNBMOREMERAR" HE/  dfEE RAEETORENAERDHR
—E2-NE AR 3,000,000 BEH
+-AZt/\A
Wuchuan Zhining Hemodialysis Company Limited*" The PRC/ Registered capital - - 99.0 99.0 Hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
6 June 2018 RMB3,000,000 service business in the PRC
S)IHENRERERAT" TE/ AMEE RAEETNRE AR RAR
2-)\f AE3,000,0007 REH
~ARA
Yangchun City Yanghe Kidney Hemodialysis Company The PRC/ Registered capital - - 99.0 99.0 Hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
[imited** 27 September 2016 RMB6,000,000 service business in the‘PRC
RETRIENNRERERAR" HE/ - dftEE RAEETORETAERDHR
—E2-RE AR 6,000,000 BEH
ABZ+tH
# The English names of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC # AATREERE AR ZH XL TEY
are transliteration of their respective Chinese names which ARERp O LATECEHEMITLES
have not been registered. 3o
* Wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC. * RHERIIBINEEEDE
" Company established in the PRC with limited liability. " REPERIINERSEEAT

BEREEERERAR
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23.

24.

226

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 23. B ABIZ# R —&
- continued
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ERINEA AT EEIATERELE
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally BEBEREFEEZEAATDMBAT o4&
affected the results or net assets of the Group. To give NEEERAREBAAR R &Y HE
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the B A Z 5B
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. RERFAEFEEE
2023 2022
—E-= —=-C
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEBFER 9,876 5,768

At as 31 March 2023, the cash at banks and cash on hand of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$8,976,000 (2022: approximately HK$5,375,000). Cash at
banks earns interest at floating rates based on the prevailing
market rate. The cash and cash equivalents are deposits with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
but conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorisation to

conduct foreign exchange business.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

On 31 March 2023, Zhuhai Sheng Chuang Medical
Investment Management Limited* (BkiBF B BEREE
EAEPRAF)(“Zhuhai Sheng Chuang”) entered into the
disposal agreement with an independent third party to sell
the entire issued share capital of Huidong Yanghe Kidney
Hemodialysis Limited® (ER&BEBFM B M BB BRLE)
(“Huidong Yanghe”), a company established under the
laws of the PRC with limited liability and is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Zhuhai Sheng Chuang, for a consideration of
approximately RMB3.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,990,000). The disposal was completed on 11 May
2023. Details of the disposal are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 31 March 2023.

The disposal does not constitute a discontinued operation as
it does not represent a separate major line of business or a
geographical area of the Group but the assets and liabilities
attributable to Huidong Yanghe, which are expected to be
sold within twelve months, were classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations as at 31 March 2023, and
are presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net
carrying amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and,
accordingly, no impairment loss has been recognised on the

classification of these operations as held for sale.

# English translations of official Chinese names are for
identification purpose only.

25. PEBFELENEE

RZZEZ=%F=A=+—08%E8#4
BREKEEEARAR (TkiEHA)
BRUE=FTUHERZ HEER
ENBNMORENBERAG (TERE
M) HWEBERTRES REANAR
#3,500,0007% (1HE 12 493,990,0007#
7o) cEREBEMA—RBBEPEEERIL
NERAT  AKEARNZEREA
So-HEFEER _E_=FRA+—
A BRUESEFBEAELHEA
AREAS_=F=A=1+—HWA
o

HEFREAENERLEEER BA
HItARKRAEBNBIIETEERB RN
wREE > MEHBR A RE12@8
RHENERBNNEENEGR 1K=
E_=ZFEZRA=+—HRBEEEMBR
HERESRE I FHENFERBEERK
ERILEEER DESRFFHE LR
rEMBRRRTERT®R-

HERSMERFREHEREERE
BREZRE Bt SIERFELE
MR EFE BN ERDAERE-
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25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

228

25. PERFELENEE-&

- continued
The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the MRS ERFFHENHEENNEE
disposal group classified as held for sale are as follows: HERABRENNT
2023
—EZ=H
HK$'000
FExT
Property, plant and equipment L EN =Y 1,085
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,308
Inventories =75 75
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEKIE 147
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEIER 88
Total assets classified as held for sale DEAFEHEEERT 3,703
Lease liabilities, and total liabilities associated with £ #EAIF(EHE S EHEEAN
assets classified as held for sale HEaBEREAR 2,838

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. 8 5 R E &M RIE

The average credit period on purchases of certain goods in
range from 30 to 90 days (2022: 30 to 90 days).

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Trade payables (Note (a)) B 5 EAIE (iska) 16,965 32,460
Accruals and other payables FEstE& R REMESRIE 4,857 4,854
Deposits received BlUtizE 2,075 =
Contract liabilities (Note (b)) sH8E (MEEb)) - 416
23,897 37,730
Notes: Fe5E -

(@)  The ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group presented (a) HBEZHHMEINAEEEZEM

based on the invoice date is as follows: RIERARE DTN ©
2023 2022
—E== B8
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FBT
Within 90 days 90H LA 7,542 18,007
91 to 180 days 91&180H 1,575 5,554
181 to 365 days 181E365H 2,722 3,658
Over 365 days B5E365H 5,126 5,241
16,965 32,460

BEETERZFHEEHNFI0E
90H (ZZE=—4 : 30F90RH) zfM-
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o =
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. B RHEMMEGRIE—E&
- continued
Notes: — continued BfizE : —4&
(b)  Contract liabilities by BHHEE
2023 2022
—gZ= B
HK$’'000 HK$'000
T#T FHET
Contract liabilities relating to receipt in 5178 Uit 84 5 Y BY AR 2R AR 75
advance of sales of finished goods or BHENENEaRE
services - 416
As at 1 April 2021, contract liabilities amounted to RIS -_—FNA—H a4 aEsE
approximately HK$390,000. #975390,0003% 7T ©
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINTHEEESHNEASEERNER
recognised relates to carried-forward contract liabilities: DU A -
2023 2022
—E-= —E_C
HK$'000 HK$'000
TF#ET FHT
Revenue recognised that was included SFAFENENERERZ
in the contract liabilities balance [ELid e
at beginning of the year (416) (300)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of S BE RN SN A ESEN — R
contract liabilities recognised are as follows: HEHHTUT :
Generally, the Group receives a lump sum amount of sales BE AEREERSII AT TS
of finished goods in advance for a specified range of time = B P &6 B 7 T8 S — 2o M W BN — = 8y
from customers when they sign the contract. This lump ERR S THIE W EHIERY)
sum amount received is recognised as a contract liability BRI A ABEEENBYSE
initially and to be recognised as revenue when performances ERIAKRE SYEEER—ERRE
obligation are satisfied. The contract liabilities would be om o

recognised as revenue within one year.

The Group considers the advance payments schemes does AEBDRATENZEHSY L FAEIES
not contain significant financing component and accordingly KB ER ) » T I A2 5 R A BR AR 2R At

the amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects . .
=12 (1 T3 £t
of the time value of money taking into consideration that the FFEBREARE R ARAMT L A

payment terms were not structured primarily for the provision BeBELAREREREREENEEMN
of finance to the Group. HEE o
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27. HE&®{E

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: EEHEaE:
Within one year —FR 2,569 2,732
Within a period of more than one year —FE L EREANIAME
but not exceeding two years 2,555 1,769
Within a period of more than two years ME LB R EANARM
but not later than five years 5,171 9,945
Within a period of more than five years AFE EHAR 7,421 6,540
17,716 20,986
Less: Amount due for settlement within Rt ZEAREEEEZ
12 months shown under current liabilities ~ £%8 (MRS EFEIE TFHIT) (2,569) (2,732)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months M+ _{EB &R EIHFEZ £
shown under non-current liabilities (RIERBEEETHIMR) 15,147 18,254

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to
lease liabilities range from 3.13% to 7.64% (2022: 4.63%

to 7.50%).

4.63%%E7.50%) °

HEEEERNMETSESEHNF
BNF3.13%FE7.64% (ZE=ZZ
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28. BORROWINGS 28. B8
2023
—EZ=H
HK$'000
FET
Bank borrowings - unsecured (Note (a)) RITREE - |ER (H5EGR)) 6,856
Other loans — secured (Note (b)) HMEM - BHER (MIsEDb)) 594
7,450

Carrying amount repayable: FE(TERE(E -

Within one year or on demand —FEANHFRER 7,450

Notes: Bk -

232

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s unsecured bank borrowings
were floating rate borrowings of which interest rates are in
the range of People’s Bank of China’s loan prime rate plus
7.10% to 14.40% per annum.

Certain of our PRC subsidiaries have entered into borrowing
agreements with third-party financing companies during the
year ended 31 March 2023. Pursuant to the loan agreements,
loans are secured by vehicles with carrying amounts of
RMB815,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$933,000),
guaranteed by certain of our other PRC subsidiaries and with
floating interest rates in the range of People’s Bank of China’s
loan prime rate plus 7.10% to 9.23% per annum.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RIEBEZ=F=A=+—H &8>
ERFARITEEAZIMNEREE HA
ENTFHEARBITERDTHBREF
KMN7.10%E14.40% ©

HE_Z-_=—F=H=+—HIEE"
EMWETFTHEMNBARHRE=Fm
BAREER RS RIBFERHE
BERUREEAR®S15,0005T (HHE
7 #9933,000% 7t) B BRI LHE
FHMPEMB R EIREBER FEE
MENFHEAARBTERREZSH
EfN7.10%%FE9.23% ©
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AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 29. Bft—%EERE
As at 31 March 2022, amount due to a director was RZEZ-F=H=+—H EH—%
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. The EENEARER RZEREAEREX
balance was settled during the year ended 31 March 2023. BE - GHRENBE_ZE_=F=H
=+—BHLEEEREF-
SHARE CAPITAL 30. g7
Nominal
value of
Number of ordinary
shares shares
BiEkz
i H EfE
HK$'000
TFHET
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, RIEZ—FMWA—H-
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 “E-_F#=-HA=+—H-
ordinary share of HK$0.05 per share “E__HFWUA—HK
—E_=f=HA=+—H
ERMEEC.0SBITZLER 1,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRERE:
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, RIEZ—FMA—HB-
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 —EHF=H=+—H-
_E__HFMNA—HRK
—E=%=H=+—H 560,222,136 28,011

BEREEERERAR
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31. RESERVES 31. (#fE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity

of the consolidated financial statements.

REFHE_S_=FR-_B_F=
B=+—HILEEEZH#EREEH
EIRGEEMBERRZGEEHDES
13_@0

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 32. XATIMBRAE

THE COMPANY

2023 2022
HK$000 HK$'000
FHAT FET
Non-current assets JERENEE

Investments in subsidiaries KHBARZKRE 6,484 6,484
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,709 931
Property, plant and equipment W2~ BB e 5% 94 484
9,287 7,899

Current assets MAEE
Other receivables and deposits Hh g IE Mg & 556 593
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEFEEE 845 379
1,401 972

Current liabilities mBAaE
Accruals and other payables FESTHE A R E M EARIE 1,600 1,859
Lease liabilities HE&E 850 927
Amount due to subsidiaries &1 Bt /B 2 Bl #RIE 36,387 25,662
Amount due to a director Bt —ESEHRIE - 3,500
38,837 31,948
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32. ZABIMBRRER—E

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Net current liabilities RENB(RIFEE (37,436) (30,976)

Total assets less current liabilities BELAERRHEE (28,149) (23,077)
Non-current liabilities JEREIEE

Lease liabilities HE&aR 1,856 =

Net liabilities BEFEE (30,005) (23,077)
Capital and reserves BRI E

Share capital fi& s 28,011 28,011

Reserves (Note 33) fEE (MI5E33) (58,016) (51,088)

Total equity R iHEE (30,005) (23,077)

The financial statement was approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2023 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Wang Jia Jun
Executive Director
F{EE
HITEE

MBRERN_T-_=F,XB=-+/"HH
EFGHERRETE THTHNES

REREE !

Wong Hon Kit

Independent non-executive Director

REG

BUIFRTEE

BEREEZRARAR
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33.

236

RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

33. "R E B

Share Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
i iEE Rt REtiEiE 4zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET THET FTERT
At 1 April 2021 KZEZ—&ME—H 60,299 5,671 (103,157) (37,187)
Loss for the year FEEBE - - (13,987) (13,987)
Total comprehensive expense FEERERTEE
for the year - - (13,987) (13,987)
Share-based payment (Note 35) URHAERZ AR
(Fi$5£35) - 86 - 86
Transfer of reserve upon the forfeited  § BERRHE R UL b5 S5 4% (i
of share options - (121) 121 -
At 31 March 2022 RZE-__&#=HB=+—H 60,299 5,636 (117,023) (51,088)
Loss for the year NEEEE = = (6,933) (6,933)
Total comprehensive expense FEEZERZALE
for the year - - (6,933) (6,933)
Share based payment (Note 35) MEMHAERZ AR
(M=E35) - 5 - 5
At 31 March 2023 KZEZ=%=B=+-H 60,299 5,641 (123,951) (58,016)
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates as Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, this

contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits to fund the
benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes are to make the specified

contributions.

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, there was
no forfeiture of retirement benefits schemes contributions
(by employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in such contributions) in the Group. As
at 31 March 2023 and 2022, no forfeited contribution under
the retirement benefits schemes of the Group is available to

reduce the contribution payable in future years.

34. RIREFIEHE

FEEATAEREGEREERILAT
MAREEE (T5HE)) ~SEIZ2EER
rEEZEESRFER FARGBTEA
EHZES AEBBRABHMAAES%
mEtEHR BE G FHAERMER

FEERPERIZINB AT ZEES
EMBFEEZEREERAKEHE
B - ZEMBREARFMNRZZE
FEDLEPRAEF 5B HRRUB TR
@R - AEBBMB KB G E 2 ME—
BEERFHAIRMHR

BE_ZE_=Zrk-ZE-Z"_F=H
=+—BHLEEE > AEETERWERM
BAGBHEER BMEEEBRMER
RUBHFAMBRLZAE BEER
BERENER) RIZ=FK_F
ZZE=ZA=Z+—RB > AEEZEBHKE
F 5+ 818 F 3 A AT O W ET A R
TR R R EE Z e
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35.

238

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme"”) whereby the
Board can grant options for the subscription of our shares
to the employees, managerial staff and senior employees
and those other persons that the Board considers that
they will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”) as described in the Share Option Scheme
in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate their
contribution to the Group. The maximum number of shares
that can be issued according to the Share Option Scheme
was 56,022,213 shares, which is equivalent to 10% of
the issued capital of the Company. The number of options
that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares
immediately after the completion of the Listing. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted
to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to
the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted
under the options to the substantial shareholders of the
Company or the independent non-executive Directors or any
of their respective associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. There is
no minimum period that the options must be held before
they become exercisable, and the options granted shall be
exercised within the period decided by the Board; however,
no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have been
granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal
value of the share. Each grantee shall pay a consideration of
HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted. The Share Option
Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted and
shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from that
date.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35. BERgiEsTR

RIE—=F2hABZ+MB > &xATE
M—IERE G REST 2 (TRERG ST E) - 5
- EFgREE -EEAEREHR
BEURBERESEMAESEZRA
BEHFERSHAEBMELE RN Z
LFHMALT (T2EAL)) BHBERRE
MR EEMRM  BtREER TR
B R ERFEEHANEBRMELNER R
BEREFETZETHNRESRNVEES
56,022,213 KM HEREA AT B %
TRRAZ10% o 1R 15 B #E ot 8 & = T
RENBEREHBE A SBERETMR L
TRARABZEITRMDEI10% o BRIEZ
AERERKRRARESITHE  [THIA
RIEERERTFSEATHNROHEN
Ef12ME B BIE AR EEBIE1% (AXA
AEERR (EER LHHAA) H\ILIE
HITESHIAHESAZHEALT (EE
RETRHRA) BEERIN) > HIRIEER
AR T AATDEERRIBEILIEANIT
EERHEZIENEMBBRA RS
BHARBBAERATR R EITRMH
0.1% BIEF EBRETTHEAERFE
HERICHIRE  MTENEBREANRES
BRENHBEAITE B EERRET
RIFHEBEBBI0EBITHE - BRETHE
BEAGQRMMUIREBERERZFEH
RER LAWK TE ; (b)) M5 R RE
REBHHHAEERXZBEMRXMESER
BRLEFAIINTFHKRHE ; RORBH
HAEZERSE SARBABRERBER
BZEZE1.008 T2 1B BIREST
BN ERMNEREN EEZHES0
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

As at 31 March 2023, the number of shares in respect of
which share options had been granted but not exercised
under the Share Option Scheme was 30,473,892 (2022:
30,473,892) shares, representing approximately 5.44%
(2022: 5.44%) of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date. Under Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules and the
provision of the Share Option Scheme, each grant of Options
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or any of their respective associates, must be

approved by the independent non-executive directors.

The following table discloses details and the movements
of the Company’s share options held by directors and
employees during the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022:

35. FARRESTE -1

A Z_E_=F=HA=+—H REE
RESBBEMKRTEZERES K
21D BB %430,473,82R (2 -
£ :30,473,892k%) s AR ERZH
ZEBITRNDA5.44% (ZEZZ
5.44%) iR EHARANE17.04(1)1F K
BREIZE BRBHEBERET
ARBDEZ - BRETHAERTERR
FHESEZEAHBABESEILE
BITESHE

BE_ZT_=_Fk_T-__%=ZH8
—t+—HEFE - ZEEZKREEFELA
BAEREZFRREEN TRINE !

Exercise Balance Granted Forfeited Exercised Balance
price for  outstanding at during during during  outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2022 the year the year the year 31 March 2023
e St gt Jmt 3
—RiRHZ mA-BZ =B=+-HZ
beh] =k AR e HAEEGR REARY RERER RERTE  HAREGS
HK$
AT
Directors 26 October 2018 26 October 2018~ 0.668 1,414,670 - - - 1,414,670
g2 26 October 2028
ZE-\EtAZ+KA ZZ-\E+AZ+/HE
ZEN\E+AZ1H
24 April 2020 24 April 2020~ 0.190 5,300,000 - - - 5,300,000
24 April 2030
ZE-ZEMAZTMA ZZCSEMACtMAZE
“ECTEMAC+MA
Total
@zt 6,714,670 - - - 6,714,670

BEREEERERAR
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
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35. FARRESTE -1

Exercise Balance Granted Forfeited Exercised Balance
price for  outstanding at during during during  outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2022 the year the year the year 31 March 2023
RZB-Z% RZB-=%
—kkHz mA-BZ ZRA=+-H2
b= AR R HAEEGR REARY RERZK RERTT i K fE 8 A
HKS
AT
Employees 26 October 2018 26 October 2018- 0.668 11,689,222 - - - 11,689,222
& 26 October 2028
2 \EtAZt+7H “2-\E£t+R_+#RE
“E-\E+RZt7H
24 April 2020 24 April 2020~ 0.190 9,340,000 - - - 9,340,000
24 April 2030
—E2_FFMA_+MA Z_SEMACtMAZE
—E2=FFMA_+EA
24 April 2020 24 April 2021- 0.190 1,170,000 - - - 1,170,000
24 April 2030
—E2_FFMA_+MA ZR_-FMAZtMAZE
—E2=FFMA_+EA
24 April 2020 24 April 2022-
24 April 2030 0.190 1,560,000 - - - 1,560,000
ZZ-REMACHMA ZECZEMAZHMAE
ZE=FEMAZMA
Total
Bzt 23,759,222 - - - 23,759,222
Grand total
&t 30,473,892 - - - 30,473,892
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 35. e tEEt R — &
Exercise Balance Granted Forfeited Exercised Balance
price for  outstanding at during during during  outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2021 the year the year the year 31 March 2022
i 3 g Jant 3
—RRHZ mA-BZ =B=+-H2
EiHAH BHE f1#E  HERELH REREHT RERER RENT R RIBLEES
HK$
BT
Directors 26 October 2018 26 October 2018- 0.668 1,414,670 - - - 1,414,670
B2 26 October 2028

ZE-\EtAZ+iA ZE-\E+AZ+/HE
2 \EtBAZ+5H

24 April 2020 24 April 2020 0.190 5,300,000 - - - 5,300,000
24 April 2030

ZE-SEMAZTMA Z_SEMAZtMAZE
ZZ=ZENAZ+MA

Total
st 6,714,670 - - - 6,714,670
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
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35. FARRESTE -1

Exercise Balance Granted Forfeited Exercised Balance
price for  outstanding at during during during  outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2021 the year the year the year 31 March 2022
RZB--% RZB-Z%
—kkHz mA-BZ ZRA=+-H2
b= AR R HAEEGR REARY RERZK RERTT i K fE 8 A
HKS
AT
Employees 26 October 2018 26 October 2018- 0.668 11,689,222 - - - 11,689,222
& 26 October 2028
2 \EtAZt+7H “2-\E£t+R_+#RE
“E-\E+RZt7H
24 April 2020 24 April 2020~ 0.190 10,640,000 - (1,300,000) - 9,340,000
24 April 2030
—E2_FFMA_+MA Z_SEMACtMAZE
—E2=FFMA_+EA
24 April 2020 24 April 2021- 0.190 1,170,000 - - - 1,170,000
24 April 2030
—E2_FFMA_+MA ZR_-FMAZtMAZE
—E2=FFMA_+EA
24 April 2020 24 April 2022- -
24 April 2030 0.190 1,560,000 - - 1,560,000
ZZ-REMACHMA ZECZEMAZHMAE
ZE=FEMAZMA
Total
st 25,059,222 - (1,300,000) - 23,759,222
Grand total
&t 31,773,892 - (1,300,000) - 30,473,892
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share options granted on 26 October 2018
(“Share Option 1")

The fair value of Share Option 1 determined using the
Binomial model was approximately HK$3,944,000. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$0.119 at the grant date, exercise price shown above,
expected volatility rate of 62.873%), annual risk free interest
rate of 2.36% and dividend payout ratio of Nil. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices
from 26 October 2013 to 26 October 2018.

All of the Share Options 1 were immediately vested from the

date of granted.

During the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, no share-
based payment expense was charged to the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

Share options granted on 24 April 2020 (“Share
Option 2")

The fair value of Share Option 2 determined using the
Binomial model was approximately HK$1,864,000. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$0.190 at the grant date, exercise price shown above,
expected volatility of 58.779%, annual risk free interest rate
of 0.51% and dividend payout ratio of Nil. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices
from 24 April 2015 to 24 April 2020.

35.

AERRtEstE — 48
RZE—N\F+BAZ+BEHH
RERGHE (THERRHE 1)
FA_EARAEECERE1Q2FEY
#3,944,0008 T  ZIEANEEHAE
B AR HEARE0. 1198 T~ LatfT
18~ FEHA I BN K62.873% ~ EEE AR
FIE236%REREX -RBEHKRER
BNBREREMTENRIE THIRIEH
“Z—=F+AZ+HEEZZ—N
FE+AZ+BENEHRENFKT DN
STESEH-

FRERRE I BREBHAEE LRS-

BE_T_="FR-ZBE__F=Z=AHA
Zt+—HLEFE - BIBEUARMAERZ
HRAZ Bt AGRSIRERA

R-E-_EFNA-+MAREN
FERR#E (TRERR#E2.)
RAZHEAEXNEETZEBRE2ATE
#9731,864,0008 o ZIERXNEEH A
BERAREHBARE.1908 T Litt
17168~ TEHAKRIE58.779% ~ & E & E b
MEOS1%RBIRER - RFEHKERD
RNIZEEREMTEMHEIE HIREH
—E—HENAZ+MHEEZZE-F
FMNAZ+NENESHRENSA T DN
STEBH

BEREEERERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EERAEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 35. R HEstE -4
Share options granted on 24 April 2020 (“Share R-ZE_ESFNA_+HARLEHD
Option 2"”) - continued RERGHE (THERRHE2)) — &
Among the 3,900,000 options granted to the employees RAEXREFERBAT ZEEREZ
of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, these options are 3,900,0007 BERG HE R > X S HE AR #E AT %
exercisable in the following manner: UTFARITREE:

—_

MERKBARBZES3I0%BR

1.  up to 30% of the options granted to each grantee

shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2020 to 23 EER_ZE-_=EFENA-+H1AH
April 2021; RZBRE_ZE”_—FWMNBZ+=

BEARIITAE

2. up to further 30% of the options granted to each 2. MEBFRABANE—TEEHZERES
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2021 30%BREBNR_-_ZE-_—FNA
to 23 April 2022; and “tHHRZBE_Z 4N

BZ+=HHBETE; &

3. all the remaining 40% of the options granted to each 3. MBFEABABELEZABHRT4I0%
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2022 BRERNR_-_ZT_—_FMA
to 23 April 2023, and in each case, not later than 24 “tHHRZBE_ZE =M
April 2030. BZ+=HHBETE KREBER

TOAREBR-ZZE=ZFMA=+MX
g o

During the year ended 31 March 2023, share-based payment HE_Z_=£=-HB=+—HILEE:"

expense of approximately HK$5,000 (2022: HK$86,000) was #95,0008 7T (ZE - "4 : 86,000/ 7T)

charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss. URMAERZGREZESF ALGIE
m;RA ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 E MW R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial

statements, the Group had entered into transactions with

related parties/connected person which, in the opinion of

directors, were carried out at normal commercial terms and

in the ordinary course of the Group’s business, as shown

below:

(a)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration:

36. B A RS
AR EREEMEHFARES N
A SRR 5 RAE A 31T T 5
RGO EERSE REXBBRELE
2RI R AEEDEEEBRTE
75 uF

(a) XEEBEASHM :

2023 2022

—E-= -z
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Short term employees benefits ZHAEEEFI 840 826
Provident fund contributions NEEHER 18 18
858 844

Transactions with related parties

(b) BB ZX%

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Expense relating to short-term lease S F{EEEFT I FEHATHE
with Wang Jia Jun BRzH% 180 180

The Group had entered into a number of transactions
with connected parties which, upon the listing of
shares on the Stock Exchange, became connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. These
transactions are continuing transactions exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. The detailed information has
been disclosed on Report of the Directors “Continuing
Connected Transactions”.

FEBARESIULZSERS N
RPEMRPAETR RELHR
A ZEMBAIM AT ABZHE
AL -ZEXBBREXS W
RETETRAETRERIR
RHEZHE -FHENERES
EREFERAERZINRE-

BEREEERERAR
= 2022/23 giﬁ 245



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SFeaMBHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZ—ZE_=F=H=+—HItFE

37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 37. MEEHEENAEBHIR
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Amount Amounts due
due to a to directors

connected and a Lease
Borrowings person  shareholder liabilities Total
FEf—%
MEALT EREER
B8 ZHE —2RRWE HE&RE aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FTERT TERT TET
At 1 April 2021 RZBZ—FMNA—AH - 6,200 8,250 22,124 36,574
Change from financing cash flows: RERERELT
Repayment of amount due to directors ~ EBENEER—LRERE
and a shareholder - - (4,750) - (4,750)
Repayment of amount due to BREN—2REALZTE
a connected person - (6,200) - - (6,200)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEE - - - (4,019) (4,019)
Total changes from financing cash flows RERE&HEELEEE - (6,200) (4,750) (4,019) (14,969)
Other changes: Hithgg)
New lease entered WMEIHEE - - - 693 693
Interest expenses FERY - - - 1,308 1,308
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - 880 880
Total other changes Hithesh 8% - = = 2,881 2,881
At 31 March 2022 RZB__#=B=+—H - - 3,500 20,986 24,486
At 1 April 2022 RZEZZEWA—H - - 3,500 20,986 24,486
Change from financing cash flows: MERTRELE .
Repayment of amount due to directors ~ fEIBE EHHIE - - (3,500) - (3,500)
Proceed from borrowings BEFEIE 11,564 - - = 11,564
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (4,992) = = = (4,992)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHESE - - - (3,874) (3,874)
Total changes from financing cash flows BEREHELEEEE 6,572 = (3,500) (3,874) (802)
Other changes: Hitgg) :
New lease entered MEITHE - = = 3,804 3,804
Interest expenses FERY 893 - - 1,125 2,018
Exchange realignment ERA (15) = = (1,487) (1,502)
Reclassify as held for sale EMNBARELE - - - (2,838) (2,838)
Total other changes Hthesh 4% 878 = = 604 1,482
At 31 March 2023 W-E-=5=RA=+—-H 7,450 - - 17,716 25,166
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38.

39.

40.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 E MW R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B2 —E_=F=H=+—RHI-FE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no material

capital commitment.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant events
requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31
March 2023 and up to the date of this report.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 June
2023.

38.

39.

40.

B KIE
RoE—_=FR-_E__F#=A=+—
B> ANEEEE RS A HKIE-

HREMEREE
EELFNBER-B-=F=H=+—
BREEAREAMBECATRES
EAEAEE-

RETIRRSHBEERR

REMBRERENR_-ZZ_=ZF7A
THARHHEFREHERRETIE-

BEREEERERAR
= 2022/23 gi& 247



Five Years Financial Summary

hAEMBIRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

BB ETIREERMBRR]ZEEENE
ZLEMBFEEZXEREELRBRZBE

published audited financial statements, is set out below: 27 el
=
RESULTS E 3 |
For the year ended 31 March
H#E=-R=+—HL
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—ECZ=E —E__F 2 - g 3 —E—hFE
HKS’000 HK$'000 HKS/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR AR TET TAR TET
Results EE
Revenue W& 173,702 154,823 114,086 96,977 96,480
Cost of sales HER A (116,766) (100,589) (72,750) (71,625) (80,448)
Gross profit EY 56,936 54,234 41,336 25,352 16,032
Other revenue Hettss 153 50 597 158 607
Other gain and loss, net Hithl e R g548 0 72 88 (733) = (102) 219 (646)
Reversal of/(allowance for) expected EHREMEWTIE Y
credit losses on trade and other REBERR B P8
receivables, net o 7,499 (3.187) (2,409) (3.,617) 4,788
Impairment loss on goodwill mERERE - (46,630) - - (35,459)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBB AT ZEE - - - _ _
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (34,798) (29,600) (24,987) (17,139) (3,669)
Administrative expenses THEZ (24,584) (22,250) (16,524) (14,443) (25,041)
Profit/(loss) from operations EEEREN (58) 4,473 (47,383) (2,089) (9,470) (43,388)
Finance costs HHER (2,018) (1,308) (1,338) (11,089) (12,839)
Profit/(loss) before taxation PRI AGER, (8548) 2,455 (48,691) (3,427) (20,559) (56,227)
Taxation wa _ (517) (2,246) (1,050) (308) (1,946)
Loss from discontinued operation BRIEEEERER - - - - (7,570)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEERT (58) 1,938 (50,937) (4,477) (20,867) (65,743)
Profit/(loss) for the year U TFALEEREE
attributable to: ,ﬁ 7/ (8
Owners of the Company NI DN 1,820 (50,999) (4,536) (20,744) (66,592)
Non-controlling interests FFERER 118 48 59 (123) 849
1,938 (50,937) (4,477) (20,867) (65,743)
For the_year ended 31 March
HEZA=1+—HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—g”= B CE —EC-F —E-FE _E-hE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER BT BT BT TERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREMR
Total assets mEE 173,448 191,818 223,587 206,700 226,589
Total liabilities meR (53,221) (63,722) (52,512) (48,365) (91,494)
Total equity i 120,227 128,096 171,075 158,335 135,095
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